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MISSION, VISION & CORE VALUES

MISSION
To help our customers manage their
risks, recover from the unexpected,
and achieve peace of mind

VISION
To be the preferred provider of
insurance solutions in all markets
we serve

CORE VALUES
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Protection with Care
Professionalism
Accountability
Integrity
Excellence
Team Work
Innovation
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PERFORMANCE
492

Million

340

Gross Written Premium
(General
Insurance)

Number of
Employees

Million
Gross
Profit

353

46

Billion
Covered Risks
Sum Insured

184

2.1

Service Center &
Satellite Offices

Billion
Total
Asset
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HIGHLIGHTS
162

Million
Total Claims
Incurred

51%
Loss
Ratio

202.7
Million

Underwriting
Result

202

Million

448

Life Insurance
Fund

Earning per
Share
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COMPANY INFORMATION
VISION

To be the preferred provider of insurance solutions in all markets we serve

MISSION

To help our customers manage their risks, recover from the unexpected,
and achieve peace of mind
NYALA HEAD: Representing Nyala’s “Caring” commitment
TRADITIONAL ETHIOPIAN SHIELD: Representing Nyala’s “Protecting”
commitment

LOGO
MOTTO

“አለኝታዎ” in Amharic
“THE SEAL OF YOUR PROTECTION” in English

DIRECTORS

Ato Kemal Mohammed (Chairman)
Ato Getachew Birbo (Deputy Chairman)
Ato Esayas Kebede (Member)
Ato Minassie Tadesse (Member)
Ato Yonas Duguma (Member)
Ato Dereje Yesuwork (Member)
Ato Asfaw Alemu (Member, Dashen Bank S.C)
Ato Yetinayet Tesfaye (Member, National Motors Corp. Plc)

BOARD
SECRETARY

Ato Behailu Tamirat

CEO

Ato Yared Mola

REGISTERED
OFFICE

Protection House, Mickey Leland Street
P. O. Box 12753, Addis Ababa, Ethiopia
Tel 251-11-6-62-66 67/80 Fax 251-11 -6-62 67 06
E-mail:nisco@ethionet.et
Website www.nyalainsurance.com

AUDITORS

HST, Chartered Certified Accountants

RE-INSURERS

Munich Re
Swiss Re
Africa Re
East Africa Re

ZEP Re
Tunis Re
Continental Re
Mapfre

BANKERS

Dashen Bank
Commercial Bank of Ethiopia
Bank of Abyssinia
Nib International Bank
Awash International Bank

United Bank S.C
Abay Bank S.C
Cooperative Bank of Oromia
Wegagen Bank S.C
Anbessa Bank S.C
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ATO KEMAL MOHAMMED
Chairman

ATO GETACHEW BIRBO
Deputy Chairman

ATO ESAYAS KEBEDE
Member

ATO MINASSIE TADDESE
Member

ATO ASFAW ALEMU
Member

ATO YONAS DUGUMA
Member

ATO YETINAYET TESFAYE
Member

ATO DEREJE YESUWORK
Member

ATO BEHAILU TAMIRAT
Secretary
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ATO YARED MOLA
CEO

ATO ASTATEKIE LULSEGED
EO, Claims Management

W/RO WOINSHET GOSSAYE
EO, Finance & investment

ATO NEBIYAT MARKOS

Manager, Engineering Service

ATO ABIY WOREDE
Manager, Strategy &
Change Management

ATO BEHAILU TAMIRAT
Manager, Legal Services
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ATO TEGEGNE MASRESHA
EO, Marketing & Business
Development

ATO ZEWDU BEYENE
EO, Underwriting

ATO GIULIANO ETTORE

EO, Resource Management

ATO ASRATU AEMRO

ATO HUSSEIN AHMED

Manager, ICT

Manager, Internal Audit &
Quality Assurance

ATO ALEMAYEHU MERID
Manager, Risk & Compliance
Managment Service
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THE 24TH ANNUAL GENERAL AND THE 17TH
EXTRAORDINARY MEETING OF NISCO’S
SHAREHOLDERS

አለኝታዎ

12

NYALA INSURANCE S.C.

THE DIRECTORS’
REPORT
13		

THE SEAL OF PROTECTION

ኒያላ ኢንሹራንስ አ.ማ

THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT
The Board of Directors has the pleasure to present the Company’s Annual Report for the year
ended 30th June 2019. The report includes a review of activities together with the Audited financial
report as well as the macro-economic and business environment under which the operation took
place during the period under review.
Nyala Insurance S.C. (NISCO), in accordance with its mission, guarantees protection with care
to its customers through three pronged insurance services – General, Life and Micro insurance
solutions. NISCO operates from 35 Service Centers (branch offices) and 11 contact offices
distributed in all regional states of the country.

THE MACRO ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT
According to the World Economic Situation and Prospects (WESP) report, “global economic growth
remained steady at 3.1 per cent in 2018, as a fiscally induced acceleration in the United States
of America offset slower growth in some other large economies. Economic activity at the global
level is expected to expand at a solid pace of 3 per cent in 2019, but there are increasing signs
that growth may have peaked. The growth in global industrial production and merchandise trade
volumes has been tapering since the beginning of 2018, especially in trade-intensive capital and
intermediate goods sectors. Leading indicators point to some softening in economic momentum
in many countries in 2019, amid escalating trade disputes, risks of financial stress and volatility,
and an undercurrent of geopolitical tensions. At the same time, several developed economies
are facing capacity constraints, which may weigh on growth in the short term.”
The IMF report on the Ethiopian economy indicates that “real gross domestic product (GDP)
grew by 7.7 percent in 2017/18, driven by favorable harvests and rapid growth in air transport and
manufacturing exports. However, political uncertainty, foreign exchange shortages, and adverse
terms-of-trade trends hampered economic activity. The government succeeded in reducing the
external current account deficit to 6.4 percent of GDP in 2017/18 through determined policies to
restrict public sector imports and borrowing and a tight monetary policy stance. Prudent budget
execution led to a lower-than-planned fiscal deficit, estimated at 3.7 percent of GDP.” The report
also indicated that “growth is expected to step up in 2018/19 to 8.5 percent, supported by stronger
confidence as the political uncertainty of previous years recedes, and external financial inflows,
including FDI temporarily ease external financing constraints and foreign exchange shortages.”

THE ETHIOPIAN INSURANCE INDUSTRY
During the year 2018/19, no new insurance company entered the market and the number of
insurance companies in the industry remained 17 companies. However, 36 additional insurance
branches have been opened during the year under review and as a result the total number of
insurance branches expanded from 532 in the preceding year to 568 branches. Other market
players in the Ethi opian Insurance Industry include 2,071 insurance agents, 58 insurance
brokers, 97 Loss Assessors and 3 Insurance Surveyors. During the period under review, a new
Insurance Company has also been under formation and soon expected to join the current fierce
competition of the industry.

አለኝታዎ
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According to the information from the National Bank of Ethiopia (NBE), Gross Written Premium
of the Industry reached Birr 9.1 billion showing a 6.1% growth from the preceding year of Birr 8.6
billion. Out of the registered gross premium Birr 8.6 Billion (94%) was registered from General
Insurance Business, while the balance of Birr 0.5 Billion (6%) was from Life Insurance Business.
When we see GWP by class of business, Motor class of business as always be took the major
share about 50%. Net earned premium and claims incurred during the period has been Birr 6.3
billion and Birr 3.8 billion respectively, which resulted in loss ratio of 60%. The ratio has decreased
by 2 percentage points from the preceding year. Moreover, during the period the industry has
registered a total of Birr 1.6 billion profit after tax and as at June 30, 2019 the industry’s total asset
and capital reached at Birr 20.8 Billion and 8.2 Billion respectively.

The Ethiopian Insurance Industry (EII) and Nyala Insurance S.C.
(NISCO) in Million Birr
2018/19

2017/18

Industry

NISCO

% Share

Industry

NISCO

% Share

Gross Written
Premium

9,097

492

5.4%

8,574

769

9.0%

Total Asset

20,819

2,053

9.9%

16,022

1,909

11.9%

Equity

8,188

842

10.3%

5,495

713

13.0%

Profit After Tax

1,600

169

10.56%

1,338

142

10.61%

Despite the undeniable benefit that it could contribute to the national economy, the Ethiopian
insurance industry is still under developed in comparison to that of other African countries.
Market remained highly regulated and the competition among the industry market players has
been based on price undercutting and unethical competition.

Claim Payment to MBI
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OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OF NISCO
Premium Income
The 2018/19 fiscal year can be characterized as a period of
uncertainty and frustration for the business community in
general and the insurance industry in particular: social unrest
and political instability, severe foreign exchange shortage,
inflation, etc. some of the unfortunate happenings.

25 %

2019

2%

During the year under review, Gross Written Premium of the
company stood at birr 491.6 million showing a 3.5% decline
over the previous year’s premium production of birr 509.4
million (excluding the premium of a onetime mega business
amounting to birr 260 million). Out of the total premium
amount, the General Insurance Business accounted for Birr
412.4 million (84%), while the Life Insurance Business grossed
in Birr 79.2 million (16%).
Distribution of premium income from General Insurance
Business has been 43.7% from Motor, 12.4% from Fire,
6.2% from Engineering, 5.9% from Marine, 4.3% Workmen
Compensation, and 27.5% is from other classes of business.
The net earned premium after deducting the re-insurer’s
share of premium and provision for unearned premium was
Birr 328.7 million and as compared to the previous year actual
of Birr 307.4 million showed a growth by 7%. When we see the
earned premium by line of business, Birr 255.4 million (78%)
was from the General Insurance Business, while the balance
Birr 73.3 million (22%) was earned from Life Business.

44 %

4%
6%
13 %

6%

Motor

Marine

Aviation

Engineering

Workmen's comp.

Others

Fire

17 %
27 %

2%
2%
4%
9%

2018
39 %

Motor

Marine

Aviation

Engineering

Workmen's comp.

Others

Fire

Net Claims Incurred
During the year net claims expenses stood at Birr 162.0 million and as compared to last year
of Birr 163.5 million showed a marginal decrease by 1.0%. Net claims incurred with respect to
the non-life insurance business amounted to Birr 131.3 million showing a 6% decrease from the
previous year actual of Birr 139.5 million. Consequently, the loss ratio of the non-life insurance
business resulted at 51%, which is lower by 6 percentage point from last year’s claim ratio.

አለኝታዎ
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Underwriting Surplus-General Insurance Business
During the year under review, the underwriting surplus of the general insurance business resulted
at Birr 116.5 million, showing an increase of 2% from last year of Birr 113.9 million. This growth
attributes mainly to the company’s prudent underwriting practices and efficient claim handling
process.
200
180
160

184. 3
15 9.6

155. 4

140

148. 2

120

Underwriting
Surplus

100
80

Gross Profit

60
40
20
0

2018/19

2017/18

When we see the underwriting result by class of business, NISCO managed to register profit in all
classes of business. The substantial contribution in underwriting surplus was from Motor, Marine,
Engineering, Bond, and Workmen’s Compensation classes of business, with 42.0%, 11.8%, 8.6%,
8.4% and 7.8% share respectively. All other classes together accounted for 21.4%.

2018/19

2017/18

ALL OTHERS
24 %

ALL OTHERS
21 %
MOTOR
21 %

MOTOR
42 %
BOND
8%

WORKMEN'
COM P.
10 %

FIRE &
LIGHTENING
12 %

MARINE
16 %

ENGINEERIN G
17 %

WORKMEN'
COM P.
8%
ENGINEERIN G
9%

MARINE
12 %

Long Term (Life) Insurance Business
As mandatory to the IFRS implementation, the actuarial valuation of the long-term insurance
business of the company is carried out for 2018/19 fiscal year by Zamara Actuary. In 2018/19-fiscal
year gross written premium from long term insurance business stood at Birr 79.2 million
registering a 15% growth from last year production of Birr 68.6 million. The net earned premium
after deducting the reinsurer’s share of premium was Birr 73.3 million and as compared with
the previous year actual of Birr 61.0 million increased by 5.5%. Total income from life business
including reinsurance commission and investment reached at Birr 96.8 million showing a 20%
increase from Birr 80.9 million of last year.
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On the other hand net claim expenses resulted at Birr 30.7 million showing a 28% increase from
last year expense of Birr 24.0 million. Generally, both from its core business and investment, net
increase in life fund for the year became Birr 60.8 million and compared to last year actual of Birr
52.3 million showed a 33% increase. Consequently, as at June 30, 2019, the life fund reached at
Birr 202.0 million which showed an increase of 25% from last year of Birr 161.2 million.
2019

202. 0

2018

161. 2

2017

108. 5

2016

84.4

2015

66 .7

2014

69.3

2013

53 .1

02

04

06

08

01

00

1201

40

1601

80

200

220

Life Fund

The actuarial valuation of the Company’s Life Fund as at 30 June 2019 revealed an actuarial
surplus of Birr 59.1 million. From the total actuarial surplus, the Actuary recommended Birr 15.0
million be made available to shareholders, while the remaining Birr 44.1 million to be carried
forward nu-appropriated.

Profit
Despite the various challenges in the year under review, the Company able to registered an
increased income both from its operational and non-operational activities of both the General
and Long Term Insurance Business. During the year the Company’s total income stood at Birr
547.0 million showing a growth by Birr 48.8 million (9.8%) from the previous fiscal year income of
Birr 498.1 million.
Consequently, the company registered an all-time high gross profit before tax of Birr 184.3 million
showing an increment of Birr 24.7 million (15.5%) over last year achievement of Birr 159.6 million.
190.0

184.3

180.0
170.0
160.0

159.6

150.0
15 9.6

140.0
2017/18
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Asset and Equity Structure
As a result of a continued performance growth, the company has become strong with respect to
its financial position. The balance sheet as at June 30, 2019 indicates that the total asset of the
company stood at Birr 2.1 billion, depicting an increase by 7.5% over similar period last year of Birr
1.9 billion. Similarly, the company’s paid up capital at the end of the year under review reached at
Birr 416.5 million showing a significant increase by 22% and 67% from last year and the strategic
target of Birr 340.5 million and Birr 250.0 million respectively.
2053

2018/ 19

841. 6

Asset

416. 5

Equity
Paid-up Capital

1909

2017/ 18

712. 8
34 0.5

01

500

000

1500

2000

2500

Performance Highlights
The following table presents comparative performance highlights for the last two years.
(In million Birr)
Description

2018/19

Paid-up Capital

2017/18
416.5

Total Asset

2,053.0

1,909.0

Gross Written Premium

491.6

769.4

Net income before tax

184.3

159.6

Underwriting result

155.4

148.2

Provision for taxation

14.8

17.9

Net income after tax

169.5

141.7
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OTHER MAJOR ACTIVITIES
Human Resources
At the end of the fiscal year 2018/19, the manpower strength of the Company reached 340 showing
a growth of 8% from the preceding year. Out of the total employees as at June 30, 2019 about
75% of the employees in NISCO are 1st Degree & above and about 77% of the employees are 40
and below 40 years of age. When we see the male and female ratio of NISCO’s employees, about
58% are male, while the remaining 42% are female employees.
In view of delivering a superior customer service, NISCO has been arranging different trainings
to enhance the knowledge and skill of employees based on periodic skill gap assessment.
Moreover, career promotion has also been given to a number of staffs based on merit and the
right person-for-the job principle.

Branch Expansion
To attain its strategic objectives of reaching out new markets and increased volume of production,
NISCO continue its expansion strategy via opening branch and contact offices. Accordingly,
during the year under review the feasibility study of opening of new Service Center in Addis
Ababa at Ras Desta area has finalized and the service center is about to start operation. Moreover,
during the reporting period feasibility studies have been conducted to open new Service Centers
in Addis Ababa at Wollo-sefer area and to up-grade the Logia Contact Office to a full-fledged
Service Center. Generally, at the end of the fiscal year under review the total number of NISCO’s
service outlets including the satellite and contact offices reached at 46 centers.

NISCO Future Head Quarter Construction Project
The construction project of the future NISCO Head Quarter which is located on Africa Avenue
road (around Olympia area) is well underway. During the review period the shoring, foundation
and the upper structural works have been completed. In the upcoming fiscal year the Hollow
Concrete Block (HCB) work, curtain wall and finishing works are expected to start.

IT System Procurement Project
Full implementation of the 1st phase (Non-life Insurance System), in all Service Centers and
Departments, is waiting the procurement of all the necessary hardware & software and building
the data center which has been delayed due to problem in obtaining foreign exchange from
banks. Despite this, the implementation of the 2nd phase of the ERP system which include Human
Resource, Payroll, Fixed Asset and Inventory Management is well underway. The implementation
of the whole system is expected to be finalized by the end of the coming fiscal year.

NISCO Graduate Trainee Program
During the period under review NISCO has conducted the third round Graduate Trainee Program
(GTP III) that will further enable it to recruit and develop exceptional performers and hence
ensure sustainable supply of skilled man power needed to execute its strategy. So far NISCO
has conducted Graduate Trainee Programs in three rounds (GTP I, GTP II & GTP III) successfully.

አለኝታዎ
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NISCO Frequently Provides Trainings to its Esteemed Customers

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
As a responsible corporate citizen, NISCO endeavors to bring a positive impact in the societies
and communities in which it operates. As in the previous years NISCO has continued to discharge
its social responsibility by supporting and working with different social and professional groups
(handicapped, elderly people, environmental and wildlife conservation, traffic police and road
safety, HIV/AIDS, sport clubs, professional associations, red cross, city chamber, etc.). Moreover,
during the year under review, NISCO has continued with the planting tree project launched in
2016 under a theme “One-Tree per One Customer” which enabled it to plant over ten thousands
of local and foreign plant species around “Entoto” Mountain by mobilizing forest experts and the
staff.

CHALLENGES
In the past one year, political reforms have been implemented with the intention of restoring peace
and stabilization of the economy of the country. The reforms focused mainly on institutionalizing
democracy and rule of law and expanding the political space. But these achievements are
not without risks. There were disruptions of business activities in some parts of the country,
displacements of people in large numbers, and conflicts that are affecting the overall economic
performance in the short to the medium term. Moreover, severe foreign exchange shortage,
inflation, limited access to capital for the private sector, high public debt burden, etc. were some
of the major macro challenges of the economy observed during the period under review.
On top of the macro challenges, the Ethiopian Insurance Industry has continued to be challenged by
multitude of factors which includes low level of insurance awareness, shortage of skilled insurance
professionals, absence of attractive bundle of insurance products, low level of integration among
insurers to challenge common issues, influencing market heavily through different affiliation and
interests and unhealthy competition through price undercutting and unethical practices.
In spite of these market challenges however, NISCO has always practiced ethically and
professionally.
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THE WAY FORWARD
NISCO, since the implementation of its first 5 year strategic plan has been showing substantial
improvements in all aspects. The company has taken a great initiative to recruit, hire and train
young professionals, redesign its business processes, employ an appropriate marketing strategy,
to invest a considerable capital in furnishing/re-furnishing/ its service outlets, etc. These efforts
have helped the company to improve its financial performance over the past five years and have
placed it among the top three insurance companies.
NISCO’s management believes that the performance of the company could even be better if
appropriate strategic measures are taken in view of the above general and specific challenges
in short, medium and long term period. Currently, the company is in the process of crafting its
second five year Strategic Plan and in the process it is expected to redefine its business model
that will enable it to excel in its service quality and performance.

TRIBUTE
The Company has continued to be one of the leading and most committed professional Insurance
Companies in the Country: Customers, the Public in general, as well as its service providers are
indeed happy to work with Nyala and the Directors are happily grateful for their patronage.
This year our Company was recognized and nominated by the African Insurance Organization
(AIO) as one of the top five companies for “Best Insurance Company of the Year Award” at
continental level. On top of this, our Chief Executive Officer, Ato Yared Mola, was crowned as
“CEO of the Year” by AIO for his profound contribution in transforming and re-orienting insurance
business philosophies by propelling NISCO’s objectives towards a more customer –oriented
services and provision of reliable risk management solutions.
The Directors take this opportunity to thank all Nyala Customers, Re-Insurers, International
Partners and its Service Providers, both Government and Private Organizations, for their valuable
support.
The Board wishes to confirm its total commitment towards the staff & the management of
the Company as its most important asset. Without the staff wholehearted dedication and the
management team’s professional guidance as well as action oriented concern to their customers,
the Company would not have achieved both the financial and social standings it now enjoys and
they deserve the Board’s heartfelt thank you.
The Board is confident that with the successful implementation of our Strategic Plan and the
consolidated effort of the staff and management, the success of NISCO will continue to prevail in
the days to come.
Kemal Mohamed
Board Chairman

አለኝታዎ

Yared Mola
CEO

22

NYALA INSURANCE S.C.

THE AUDITORS’
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NYALA INSURANCE SHARE COMPANY
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
NYALA INSURANCE SHARE COMPANY
FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

The Directors have pleasure of presenting their report on the affairs of Nyala Insurance Share Company (NISCO) or
'the Company" together with the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2019, to the shareholders of
Nyala Insurance Share Company (NISCO). This report discloses the financial performance and state of affairs of the
Company.
Incorporation and address
Nyala Insurance Share Company (NISCO), ("the Company) is a private commercial insurance company domiciled in
Ethiopia. The Company was established in October 1995 in accordance with the provisions of the Commercial Code
of Ethiopia 1960 and Licensing and Supervision of Insurance Business Proclamation no. 86/1994.
Principal activities
The Company is principally engaged in the provision of general insurance and life insurance services and other
ancillary business activities to a wholesale, retail and SME clients base in Ethiopian market.
Dividends
During the year under review, the Directors declared and paid dividend in the sum of ETB 35,730,700 (2018: ETB
29,982,354).
Operating results
The Company's results for the year ended 30 June 2019 are set out on page 7. The profit for the year has been
transferred to retained earnings. The summarized results are presented below.
30 June 2019
ETB

30 June 2018
ETB

Net premiums

328,743,791

307,436,139

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense
Remeasurement loss on retirement benefits obligations

184,319,663
(14,821,279)
(48,000)

159,569,789
(17,875,734)
(351,000)

Profit for the year

169,450,384

141,343,055

Directors
The Directors who held office during the year and to the date of this report are set out on page 2.

Kemal Mohammed Osman
Board Chairman
Addis Ababa, Ethiopia

ϯ
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NYALA INSURANCE SHARE Company
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019
NYALA INSURANCE SHARE Company
STATEMENT
OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019
STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

The Commercial Code of Ethiopia 1960 and Licensing and Supervision of Insurance Business Proclamation no.
746/2012 of the Government of Ethiopia require the Directors to prepare financial statements that represent the
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and the operating results of the Company for that
year. The Commercial Code of Ethiopia 1960 also requires the Directors to ensure that the Company keeps proper
accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company. The
Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company.
The Directors are responsible for preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner required by the Commercial Code of Ethiopia 1960
and Licensing and Supervision of Insurance Business Proclamation no 746/2012 of the Government of Ethiopia and
for such internal controls as the Directors determine are necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
The Directors accept responsibility for the annual financial statements, which have been prepared using appropriate
accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates, in conformity with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and in the manner required by the Commercial Code of Ethiopia
1960. The Directors are of the opinion that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the
financial affairs of the Company and of its operating results. The Directors further accept responsibility for the
maintenance of accounting records which may be relied upon in the preparation of financial statements, as well as
designing adequate systems of internal financial controls relevant and necessary to enable preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error.
The Directors also accepts responsibility for:
i)

Designing, implementing and maintaining such internal control as they determine necessary to enable the
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error;

ii)

Selecting suitable accounting policies and applying them consistently; and

iii)

Making accounting estimates and judgements that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Directors acknowledge that the independent audit of the financial statements does not relieve them of their
responsibilities.
The Directors certify that, to the best of their knowledge, the information furnished to the auditors for the purpose
of the audit was correct and is an accurate presentation of the Company's financial transactions.
Nothing has come to the attention of the Directors to indicate that the Company will not remain a going concern
for at least the next twelve months from the date of this statement.

Kemal Mohammed Osman
Board Chairman

Yared Mola
Chief Executive Officer

15 October 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NYALA INSURANCE SHARE COMPANY
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NYALA INSURANCE SHARE COMPANY

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Nyala Insurance Share Company, set out on pages 7 to
46, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2019, and the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company as at 30 June 2019 and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and in a manner required by the Commercial Code of
Ethiopia 1960.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Ethiopia, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the IESBA code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
Insurance contract liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities represent 33.7% of the total liabilities of the Company. Their valuation was significant to
our audit because their assessment process is judgmental and based on actuarial assumptions.
As a result, our audit procedures included among others, using actuarial experts to assist us in evaluating the
assumptions and methodologies used by the Group. Our work also involved evaluating operating effectiveness of
controls over the complete and accurate recording of the reserves.
Premium income and recievables
The recognition of premium revenue, determination of unearned premiums and estimation of provisions for
uncollected premium receivables involves significant judgement. These balances require judgement to be applied by
the Company for their valuation and their processing require adjustments to be made.
Our procedures in this regard included conducting relevant substantive procedures and substantive analytical
procedures to assess the reasonableness of provisions made testing of key controls over the process of recording and
reviewing of premium income.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NYALA INSURANCE SHARE COMPANY (Continued)
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NYALA INSURANCE SHARE COMPANY (Continued)
Other Information
The Directors are responsible for the other information, which comprises the report of the Board of Directors' as
required by the Commercial Code of Ethiopia 1960 and Licensing and Supervision of Insurance Business Proclamation
no. 746/2012 of the Government of Ethiopia and Supervision of Insurance Business Directives of the National Bank of
Ethiopia. The other information does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of the Directors and Those Charged with Governannce for the Financial Statements
The Directors are responsible for preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner required by the Commercial Code of Ethiopia 1960 and
Licensing and Supervision of Insurance Business Proclamation no 746/2012 of the Government of Ethiopia and for
such internal controls as the Directors determine are necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so. The Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
(i) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
(ii) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control.
(iii) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Directors.
(iv) Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
(v) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NYALA INSURANCE SHARE COMPANY (Continued)
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NYALA INSURANCE SHARE COMPANY (Continued)
Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued)
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with the relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.
Report on other legal requiremnets
i)

Pursuant to Article 375(1) of the Commercial Code of Ethiopia 1960, and based on our reviews of the
Board of Directors’ report, we have not noted any matter that we may wish to bring to your attention;

ii)

Pursuant to article 375 (2) of the Commercial Code of Ethiopia 1960, we recommend the financial
statements for approval.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors' report is Tekeste Gebru.

Tekeste Gebru
Engagement Partner
Registered Auditor
HST General Partnership, Chartered Certified Accountants and Authorized Auditors
(Auditors' of Nyala Insurance Share Company (NISCO))
Addis Ababa, Ethiopia
15 October 2019
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NYALA INSURANCE SHARE COMPANY
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
NYALA INSURANCE SHARE COMPANY
FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

Notes

2019
ETB

2018
ETB

4

491,619,885

769,351,009

10,263,886

(9,550,605)

Gross earned premium

4

501,883,771

759,800,403

Less:Premium ceded to reinsurers

4

(173,139,980)

(452,364,264)

328,743,791

307,436,139

52,765,936

61,142,946

381,509,727

368,579,085

(163,514,840)

Gross premium income
Change in unearned premium net

Commission and fees income

5

Net Underwriting income

Net claims expenses

8

(161,955,921)

Commission and fees expense

9

(16,766,105)

(16,628,953)

Net Underwriting expenses

(178,722,026)

(180,143,793)

Underwriting profit

202,787,701

188,435,292
119,160,375

Investment income

6

158,775,124

Other income

7

6,690,250

10,469,598

368,253,075

318,065,266

(138,166,806)

(126,147,242)

Profit before income tax

230,086,269

191,918,024

Transfer to life fund

(60,766,606)

(52,348,235)

169,319,663

139,569,789

Net Income
Operating and administrative expenses

10

Profit from life insurance as per actuarial valuation
Profit before taxation
Profit tax expense

11(a)

Net profit for the year

15,000,000

20,000,000

184,319,663

159,569,789

(14,821,279)

(17,875,734)

169,498,384

141,694,055

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be subsequently reclassified into
profit or loss:
Remeasurement loss on retirement benefits obligations

29(b)

Total comprehensive income for the year
Basic and diluted earnings per share

12

(48,000)

(351,000)

169,450,384

141,343,055

448

496

The notes on pages 12 to 46 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NYALA INSURANCE SHARE COMPANY
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
NYALA INSURANCE SHARE COMPANY
AS
AT 30 JUNE 2019
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2019

Notes

30 June 2019

30 June 2018

ETB

ETB

13

774,736,671

963,098,231

-Available for sale

14

244,030,303

132,715,000

-Loans and receivables

17

-

-

Other receivables

15

254,752,478

49,102,482

Deferred acquisition costs

16

5,078,634

6,155,762

Statutory deposit

18

51,250,000

39,250,000

Receivable arising from reinsurance arrangment (net)

20

9,924,367

8,981,151

Reinsurers’ share of insurance contract liabilities

21

365,949,893

406,048,145

Investment properties

23

119,008,187

121,569,643

Property and equipment

24

226,412,093

180,503,498

Leasehold land

25

1,564,645

1,604,850

2,052,707,271

1,909,028,761

26

407,545,518

365,187,254

27
28

318,541,540
84,834,013

382,134,863
86,804,835

34

142,518,173

87,510,399

Assets
Cash and balances with banks
Investment in securities

Total Assets
Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities (claims)
Unearned premium
Payables arising out of reinsurance arrangements
Actuarial value of policyholder liability
Current Income tax payable

11(c)

7,192,041

9,406,527

Dividends payable

31

11,535,665

14,256,557

Deferred tax liabilities

11

76,024,788

78,797,206

Deffered commission income

5

31,412,951

34,437,426

Retirement benefit obligation

29

9,131,000

7,691,000

Other payables

30

122,344,189

130,031,329

1,211,079,877

1,196,257,396

340,456,000

Total liabilities
Equity
Paid up capital

33a)

416,456,000

Legal reserves

33b)

90,999,025

74,053,987

Retained earnings

33c)

154,687,444

111,730,701

Life fund reserve

33d)

Revaluation surplus
Total equity
Total Equity and liabilities

30,838,759

37,307,733

148,646,166

149,222,944

841,627,394

712,771,365

2,052,707,271

1,909,028,761

The notes on pages 12 to 46 are an integral part of these financial statements.
The financial statements on pages 8 to 46 were approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 15
October 2019 and were signed on its behalf by:

_________________________
Kemal Mohammed Osman

Yared Mola

Board Chairman

Chief Executive Officer
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-

Transfer to Legal reserve

Dividend Paid

-

Dividend Paid

154,687,444

2,182,097

-

(76,000,000)

(35,730,700)

(16,945,038)

169,450,384

111,730,701

111,730,701

456,126

-

-

(80,000,000)

(29,982,354)

(14,134,305)

141,343,055

94,048,179

Retained Earning

The notes on pages 12 to 46 are an integral part of these financial statements.

416,456,000

-

Re-measurement Adjustment

Balance as at June 30,2019

-

Transferred to LTIB (note 34)

76,000,000

-

Transfer to Legal reserve

Transferred to paidup capital

-

340,456,000

As at 1 July 2018

Profit for the year

340,456,000

-

Balance as at June 30,2018

-

Re-measurement

2,064,000

Transferred to LTIB

Issue of additional capital

80,000,000

-

Transferred to paidup capital

258,392,000

Profit for the year

ETB

Share capital

As at 1 July 2017

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

NYALA INSURANCE SHARE COMPANY
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
NYALA INSURANCE SHARE COMPANY
FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

-

90,999,025

-

-

-

-

16,945,038

-

74,053,987

74,053,987

582,309

-

-

-

14,134,305

-

59,337,373

ETB

Legal reserve

148,646,166

(576,778)

-

-

-

-

-

149,222,944

149,222,944

756,150

-

-

-

-

-

-

148,466,794

Revaluation
surplus
ETB

30,838,759

-

(6,468,974)

-

-

-

-

37,307,733

37,307,733

-

-

-

-

-

6,068,573

-

31,239,160

ETB

Life Fund reserve

841,627,394

1,605,319

(6,468,974)

-

(35,730,700)

-

169,450,384

712,771,365

712,771,365

1,794,585

-

2,064,000

-

(29,982,354)

6,068,573

141,343,055

591,483,506

ETB

Total
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NYALA INSURANCE SHARE COMPANY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NYALA INSURANCE SHARE COMPANY
FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

Note

2019
ETB

2018
ETB

(124,571,400)

137,876,078

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations
Retirement benefit paid
Taxation paid

35
29

(48,000)

(613,000)

11(c)

(9,752,520)

(8,220,525)

(134,371,920)

129,042,553

114,611,886

(34,900,000)

Net cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additional deposits with financial institutions
Purchase of property and equipment

24

(53,486,097)

(19,496,884)

Addtional investment in securities-available for sale

14

(111,315,303)

(13,529,000)

1,518,483

8,014,792

Dividend income received

6

65,150,721

26,209,721

Interest income received

6

82,594,148

83,325,382

99,073,839

49,624,011

Proceeds from sale of property and salvage goods

Net cash generated from /(used in) investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
(38,451,592)

(27,344,749)

Net cash used in financing activities

Dividends paid

(38,451,592)

(27,344,749)

INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(73,749,673)

151,321,814

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JULY

333,049,802

181,727,988

259,300,129

333,049,802

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 30 JUNE

31

13

The notes on pages 11 to 46 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NYALA INSURANCE SHARE COMPANY
NOTES
TO THE
FINANCIAL
NYALA
INSURANCE
SHARE
COMPANY STATEMENTS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GENERAL INFORMATION

1

NYALA INSURANCE SHARE COMPANY (The “Company”) is a private insurance company incorporated under the Commercial
Code of Ethiopia 1960 and is domiciled in Ethiopia. The Company was established in 1995 and its business is organized into
three main divisions: short-term (general) business, long-term (life) business and Micro insurance Businesses. Its short-term
business relates to underwriting of property, travel, and liability insurance business while the long-term business relates to
the underwriting of life risks relating to insured persons and Micro businesses are related to small farms and weather index.
The Company has branch offices in different parts of Ethiopia.
The Company's registered office is at;
Protection House,
Bole Sub-city,
P O Box 12753
Addis Ababa.
Ethiopia
BASIS OF PREPARATION

2

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the
requirements of the Commercial Code of Ethiopia 1960.
2.1

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
These financial statements, including comparatives, have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Commercial Code of Ethiopia 1960 and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB). Additional information required by national regulation are included where appropriate

2.2

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT
The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention except for the revaluation
of properties for the purpose of deemed cost and investments. In addition, these financial statements are prepared using the
accrual basis of accounting except for cash flow information. The financial statements are presented in Ethiopian Birr (ETB).
For the purpose of reporting under the Commercial code of Ethiopia 1960, the balance sheet in these financial statements is
represented by the statement of financial position and the profit and loss account is presented in the statement of
comprehensive income.

2.3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The Company describes the accounting policies applied in each of the individual notes to the financial statements and avoids
repeating the text of the standard, unless this is considered relevant to the understanding of the note’s content. The most
significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.3.1

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)

(i)

New standards and amendments to published standards effective and adopted for the year ended 30 June 2019.
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
IFRS 15 supersedes IAS 11 Construction contracts; IAS 18 Revenue; IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes; IFRIC 15
Agreements for the construction of Real Estate; IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers and SIC 31 Revenue - Barter
Transactions Involving Advertising Services.
The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity recognises revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services. An entity recognises revenue in accordance with that core principle by applying the following steps:

- Identify the contract(s) with a customer
- Identify the performance obligations in the contract
- Determine the transaction price
- Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
- Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.
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NYALA INSURANCE SHARE COMPANY
NOTES
TO THESHARE
FINANCIAL
NYALA INSURANCE
COMPANYSTATEMENTS (Continued)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2.3

Summary of accounting policies (Continued)

2.3.1

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) (continued)

(i)

New standards and amendments to published standards effective and adopted for the year ended 30 June 2019.
IFRS 15 also includes extensive new disclosure requirements.
Amendments to IFRS 15: Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
The amendment provides clarification and further guidance regarding certain issues in IFRS 15. These items include guidance
in assessing whether promises to transfer goods or services are separately identifiable; guidance regarding agent versus
principal considerations; and guidance regarding licenses and royalties.
The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2018.
The company has adopted the standard for the first time in the 2018/2019 annual financial statements.The adoption of the
standard has not brought material impact on the financial statements.
The company has chosen not to early adopt the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are
mandatory for the company’s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2019 or later periods:

(ii)

New and Amendments to standards

Effective for annual periods
beginning on or after

IFRS 9 Financial Instrument

1 January 2022

IFRS 16 Leases

1 January 2019

Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes: Annual Improvements to IFRS
2015 - 2017 cycle

1 January 2019

Amendments to IAS 23 Borrowing Costs: Annual Improvements to IFRS
2015 - 2017 cycle

1 January 2019

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

1 January 2022

Relevant new and amended standards and interpretations in issue but not yet effective in the year ended 30 June
2019.
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
IFRS 9 issued in November 2009 introduced new requirements for the classification and measurements of financial assets.
IFRS 9 was subsequently amended in October 2010 to include requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial liabilities and for derecognition, and in November 2013 to include the new requirements for general hedge
accounting. Another revised version of IFRS 9 was issued in July 2014 mainly to include a) impairment requirements for
financial assets and b) limited amendments to the classification and measurement requirements by introducing a "fair value
through other comprehensive income" (FVTOCI) measurement category for certain simple debt instruments.
Key requirements of IFRS 9:

•

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement are
required to be subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within a
business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the outstanding principal are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent reporting periods. Debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on outstanding principal, are measured at
FVTOCI. All other debt and equity investments are measured at fair value at the end of subsequent reporting periods. In
addition, under IFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive income with only dividend income generally
recognised in profit or loss.

•

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss, IFRS 9 requires that
the amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of the liability
is presented in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effect of the changes of the liability's credit risk in
other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Under IAS 39, the entire
amount of the change in fair value of a financial liability designated as at fair value through profit or loss is presented in
profit or loss.
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NYALA INSURANCE SHARE COMPANY
NOTES
TO THE
FINANCIAL
NYALA
INSURANCE
SHARE
COMPANY STATEMENTS (Continued)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2.3

Summary of accounting policies (Continued)

2.3.1

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) (continued)

(ii)

Relevant new and amended standards and interpretations in issue but not yet effective in the year ended 30 June
2019. (Continued)

•

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an incurred
credit loss model under IAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected credit losses and
changes in those expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition. It is
therefore no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are recognised.

•

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the three types of hedge accounting mechanisms currently available
in IAS 39. Under IFRS 9, greater flexibility has been introduced to the types of transactions eligible for hedge accounting,
specifically broadening the types of instruments that qualify for hedging instruments and the types of risk components of nonfinancial items that are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test has been replaced with the principal
of an "economic relationship". Retrospective assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required. Enhanced
disclosure requirements about an entity's risk management activities have also been introduced.

The International Accounting Standards Board has deferred the effective date of IFRS 9 from 1 January 2018 to beginning
January 2022 along with IFRS 17. Accordingly, the Company has deferred the adoption of IFRS 9 along with IFRS 17
Insurance contracts.
Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes: Annual Improvements to IFRS 2015 - 2017 cycle
The amendment specifies that the income tax consequences on dividends are recognised in profit or loss, other
comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally recognised the events or transactions which
generated the distributable reserves.
The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2019.
The impact of this amendment is currently being assessed.
Amendments to IAS 23 Borrowing Costs: Annual Improvements to IFRS 2015 - 2017 cycle
The amendment specifies that when determining the weighted average borrowing rate for purposes of capitalising borrowing
costs, the calculation excludes borrowings which have been made specifically for the purposes of obtaining a qualifying asset,
but only until substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are complete.
The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2019.
The impact of this amendment is currently being assessed.
Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
The interpretation clarifies how to apply the recognition and measurement requirements in IAS 12 when there is uncertainty
over income tax treatments. Specifically, if it is probable that the tax authorities will accept the uncertain tax treatment, then
all tax related items are measured according to the planned tax treatment. If it is not probable that the tax authorities will
accept the uncertain tax treatment, then the tax related items are measured on the basis of probabilities to reflect the
uncertainty. Changes in facts and circumstances are required to be treated as changes in estimates and applied prospectively.

The effective date of the interpretation is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2019.
The company expects to adopt the interpretation for the first time in the 2019 annual financial statements.
The impact of this interpretation is currently being assessed.
IFRS 16 Leases
IFRS 16 Leases is a new standard which replaces IAS 17 Leases, and introduces a single lessee accounting model. The main
changes arising from the issue of IFRS 16 which are likely to impact the company are as follows:
Company as lessee:
• Lessees are required to recognise a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for all leases, except short term leases or leases

where the underlying asset has a low value, which are expensed on a straight line or other systematic basis.

• The cost of the right-of-use asset includes, where appropriate, the initial amount of the lease liability; lease payments made

prior to commencement of the lease less incentives received; initial direct costs of the lessee; and an estimate for any
provision for dismantling, restoration and removal related to the underlying asset.
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2.3

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.3.1

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)
New Standards, amendments, interpretations issued but not yet effective (continued)
IFRS 16 Leases (Continueed)
• The lease liability takes into consideration, where appropriate, fixed and variable lease payments; residual value guarantees

to be made by the lessee; exercise price of purchase options; and payments of penalties for terminating the lease.

• The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured on the cost model at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment and

adjusted for any re-measurement of the lease liability. However, right-of-use assets are measured at fair value when they
meet the definition of investment property and all other investment property is accounted for on the fair value model. If a
right-of-use asset relates to a class of property, plant and equipment which is measured on the revaluation model, then that
right-of-use asset may be measured on the revaluation model.

• The lease liability is subsequently increased by interest, reduced by lease payments and re-measured for reassessments or

modifications.

• Re-measurements of lease liabilities are affected against right-of-use assets, unless the assets have been reduced to nil, in

which case further adjustments are recognised in profit or loss.

• The lease liability is re-measured by discounting revised payments at a revised rate when there is a change in the lease term

or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

• The lease liability is re-measured by discounting revised lease payments at the original discount rate when there is a change

in the amounts expected to be paid in a residual value guarantee or when there is a change in future payments because of a
change in index or rate used to determine those payments.

• Certain lease modifications are accounted for as separate leases. When lease modifications which decrease the scope of the

lease are not required to be accounted for as separate leases, then the lessee re-measures the lease liability by decreasing
the carrying amount of the right of lease asset to reflect the full or partial termination of the lease. Any gain or loss relating
to the full or partial termination of the lease is recognised in profit or loss. For all other lease modifications which are not
required to be accounted for as separate leases, the lessee re-measures the lease liability by making a corresponding
adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

• Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities should be presented separately from other assets and liabilities. If not, then the line

item in which they are included must be disclosed. This

• does not apply to right-of-use assets meeting the definition of investment property which must be presented within

investment property. IFRS 16 contains different disclosure requirements compared to IAS 17 leases.

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning after
30 June 2018, and have not been applied in preparing these financial statements. None of these is expected to have a
significant effect on the financial statements of the Company, except the following set out below:
This standard was issued in January 2016 (effective 1 January 2019) . It sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases. The objective is to ensure that lessees and lessors provide relevant
information in a manner that faithfully represents those transactions. The standard introduces a single lessee accounting
model and requires a lessee to recognize assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the
underlying asset is of low value.
A lessee is required to recognize a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease
liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. It also substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in IAS 17. The Company is yet to assess the expected impact of this standard.

ϭϱ

37		

THE SEAL OF PROTECTION

ኒያላ ኢንሹራንስ አ.ማ

NYALA INSURANCE SHARE COMPANY
NOTES
TO THE
FINANCIAL
NYALA
INSURANCE
SHARE
COMPANY STATEMENTS (Continued)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
2.3

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.3.1

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)
New Standards, amendments, interpretations issued but not yet effective (continued)
IFRS 17 - Insurance contracts
IFRS 17 was issued in May 2017 and establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure
of insurance contracts within the scope of the standard. The objective of IFRS 17 is to ensure that an entity provides relevant
information that faithfully represents those contracts. This information gives a basis for users of financial statements to assess
the effect that insurance contracts have on the entity's financial position, financial performance and cash flows.
This standard requires a company that issues insurance contracts to report insurance obligations and risks on the balance
sheet as the total of:
(a) the fulfilment cash flows— the current estimates of amounts that the insurer expects to collect from premiums
and pay out for claims, benefits and expenses, including an adjustment for the timing and risk of those cash flows;
and
(b) the contractual service margin— the expected profit for providing future insurance coverage (i.e. unearned
profit).
The measurement of the fulfilment cash flows reflects the current value of any interest-rate guarantees and financial options
included in the insurance contracts.
IFRS 17 requires an entity to recognise profits as it delivers insurance services, rather than when it receives premiums, as
well as to provide information about insurance contract profits that the Company expects to recognize in the future.
IFRS 17 alsorequires an entity to distinguish between groups of contracts expected to be profit making and groups of
contracts expected to be loss making.
Any expected losses arising from loss making, or onerous, contracts are accounted for in profit or loss as soon as the
Company determines that losses are expected.
The standard replaces IFRS 4 ‘Insurance contracts’. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022 and earlier application is permitted. The Company is yet to assess the expected impact on this standard.
IFRIC Interpretation 22 - Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration
IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration was issued in December 2016 (effective 1 January 2018).
The interpretation clarifies that in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to advance
consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which an entity initially recognizes the non-monetary asset or nonmonetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, then the
entity must determine a date of the transactions for each payment or receipt of advance consideration.
Entities may apply the amendments on a fully retrospective basis. Alternatively, an entity may apply the interpretation
prospectively to all assets, expenses and income in its scope that are initially recognized on or after:
(i) The beginning of the reporting period in which the entity first applies the interpretation or;
(ii) The beginning of a prior reporting period presented as comparative information in the financial statements of
the reporting period in which the entity first applies the interpretation.

2.3.2

Insurance contracts
a) Classification
Contracts under which the Company accepts significant insurance risk from another party (the policyholder) by agreeing to
compensate the policyholder or other beneficiary if a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects the
policyholder are classified as insurance contracts. Insurance contracts are classified by the Company into two main categories
as per the provisions of the Licensing and Supervision of Insurance Business Proclamation No. 746/2012: general insurance
business and long term insurance business.
b) Recognition and measurement
Long term insurance business include life insurance, annuity, pension, health insurance, and personal accident or sickness
insurance. General insurance business represents insurance business of any class or classes not being long term insurance
business. Classes of general insurance include engineering insurance, fire insurance, aviation insurance, liability insurance,
travel insurance, marine insurance, motor insurance, theft insurance, workmen’s compensation and employer's liability
insurance and other similar insurances.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.3.2

Insurance contracts ( continued)
i) Premium income
Premium income for general insurance business is recognized on the assumption of risks, and includes premiums received less
an allowance for cancellations and less unearned premiums. Unearned premiums represent the proportion of the premiums
written in periods up to the accounting date which relate to the unexpired terms of policies in force at the end of each
reporting period, and are calculated using the 1/24th method on net written premiums. Premiums for long term assurance
business are recognized as income when they are received from the policyholders. Premiums are shown before deduction of
commission.
ii) Claims
Claims incurred comprise claims paid and related expenses in the year and changes in the provision for outstanding claims.
Claims paid represent all payments made during the year, whether arising from events during that or earlier years.
Outstanding claims represent the estimated ultimate cost of settling all claims arising from incidents occurring prior to the end
of the reporting period, but not settled at that date. The reserve for outstanding claims is computed on the basis of the best
information available at the time the records for the year are closed, and include additional provisions for claims incurred but
not reported (IBNR). IBNR is included in the outstanding claims as at year end. Outstanding claims are not discounted.
iii) Reinsurance contracts held
Contracts entered into by the Company with reinsurers under which the Company is compensated for losses on one or more
contracts issued by the Company and that meet the classification requirements for insurance contracts are classified as
reinsurance contracts held. Contracts that do not meet these classification requirements are classified as financial assets.
Insurance contracts entered into by the Company under which the contract holder is another insurer (inwards reinsurance) are
included with insurance contracts.
iv) Liability adequacy test
At each financial reporting date, liability adequacy tests are performed to ensure the adequacy of the contract liabilities. In
performing these tests, an actuary is involved in valuation of insurance Liabilities consisting of determining best estimates
(using prescribed methodologies where required) of the outstanding claims liabilities and the premium liabilities of the
Company. Current best estimates of future contractual cash flows and claims handling and administration expenses, as well as
investement in come from assets backing such liabilities, are used. Any defficiency is immediately charged to profit or loss.
v) Receivables and payables related to insurance contracts
Receivables and payables related to insurance contracts are recognized when due. These include amounts due to and from
agents, brokers and insurance contract holders. If there is objective evidence that the insurance receivable is impaired, the
Company reduces the carrying amount of the insurance receivable accordingly and recognizes that impairment loss in profit or
loss.
vi) Salvage
Insurance contracts permit the Company to sell the salvage property after full and final settlement of claim is executed. The
Company may has the right to pursue third parties for payment of some or all costs . Estimates of salvage recoveries are
disclosed with there estimated value.
vii) Commissions payable and deferred acquisition costs
Acquisition costs comprise all direct and indirect costs arising from the writing of non-life insurance contracts. Deferred
acquisition costs represent a proportion of commission which are incurred during a financial period and are deferred to the
extent that they are recoverable out of future revenue margins. it is calculated by applying to the acquisition expenses the
ratio of unearned premium to written premium.
Commissions and other acquisition costs that vary with and are related to securing new contracts and renewing existing
contracts are capitalized as an intangible asset (DAC). All other costs are recognized as expenses when incurred.
DAC is subsequently amortized over the life of the contracts as follows:
- For property, casualty and short-duration life insurance contracts, DAC is amortized over the terms of the policies as
premium is earned.
viii) Other Income
Commissions received are recognized as income over the policy period and those unearned during the policy period are
differed for the next fiscal year
Fee income: Fees are recognized in the accounting period in which the services are rendered.
Interest income:Interest income is recognized as income in the period in which it is earned.
Dividend income: Dividends are recognized as income in the period in which the right to receive payment isestablished.For
equity investment in associate, income is recognized using the equity method.
Rental income: Rental income from investment property is recognized as income in the period in which it is earned.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3.3

Foreign currencies
a) Functional and presentation currency
Ethiopia is the primary economic environment in which the Company operates. The financial statements are presented in
Ethiopian ETB, which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
b) Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions that are denominated, or that require settlement, in a foreign currency are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized through profit or loss.

2.3.4

Income Taxes
Current income tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the tax authority, Ethiopian Revenues and Customs Authority. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date, in Ethiopia. During the reporting period, the
Company didn’t operate and generate taxable income in a foreign country. Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in the tax declaration forms with respect to disputable situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.
Deferred income tax
Deferred income tax is recognized, using the asset and liability method, on temporary differences at the reporting date arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. The carrying
amount of deferred income tax assets, if any, is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and recognized only to the
extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to
be utilized. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rate that has been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority.

2.3.5

Property and equipment
All categories of property and equipment are initially recorded at cost and subsequently stated at historical cost/ fair value as
deemed cost less depreciation and impairment. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will ﬂow to the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Property and equipment is depreciated to its estimated residual value over its expected useful life. The depreciation methods,
estimated remaining useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date. The useful lives are estimated, by
management, based on historic analysis and other available information. The Company uses the following indicators to
determine useful life: expected usage of assets, expected physical wear and tear, and technical and commercial obsolescence.
The residual values are estimated based on useful lives as well as other available information. Depreciation is calculated using
the straight line method to write down their cost to their residual values over their estimated remaining useful lives, as
follows:
Building

42 to 58 years

Motor vehicles are

3 to 20 years

Computers hardware & software

4 years

Office equipment, furniture, & fixture

5 years
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3.5

Property and equipment (Continued)
Property and equipment are reviewed for possible impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. If any indication of impairment exists, an estimate of the asset’s
recoverable amount is calculated. The recoverable amount is determined as the higher of the fair value less direct costs to sell
and the asset value in use (being the present value of the expected future cash flows of the asset). An impairment loss is
recognized for the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognized in prior periods for property and equipment are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications that the impairment loss has decreased or may no longer exist. The impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of the asset and is reversed only to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of amortization or
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized. Impairment losses, and any subsequent reversals, are recognized in
the statement of comprehensive income.

2.3.6

Investment property
Investment property is property held to earn rentals and/ or for capital appreciation or both. Investment property is initially
recognized at cost including the transaction costs except for properties valed at fair value as deemed cost. Subsequently,
investment property are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognized impairment in value. The
depreciation policies for investment property are consistent with those described for owner-occupied property.

2.3.7

Properties under construction
Properties in the course of construction are carried as work in progress at cost, less any recognized impairment loss. Cost
includes professional fees. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories when completed and ready for intended
use.

2.3.8

Software
Acquired software are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the software. Costs are
amortized over estimated useful lives of the software on a straight-line basis.

2.3.9

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to company as a lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases
are charged to profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the period of the lease. Rental income from operating leases is
charged to profit or loss for the year on the straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

2.3.10 Employee benefits
Defined contribution benefits:
The Company is required to contribute 11 percent of the base salary of the employees to the pension fund administered by
the federal government. This pension scheme is defined contribution plans where the Company’s legal or constructive
obligation is limited to the amount contributed to the fund. Contributions to the pension fund in respect of the services
rendered in a particular month are recognized as an expense in that period
Leave pay:
Every year employees of the Company are entitled for paid leave for a specified number of working days in a year. Employee
entitlements to annual leave are recognized when they accrue to employees. The estimated monetary liability for employees’
accrued annual leave entitlement at the end of the reporting period is recognized as an expense accrual.
Bonus plans:
A liability for employee benefits in the form of bonus plans is recognized as a provision when past practice has created a valid
expectation by employees that they will receive a bonus and amounts can be determined before the time of issuing the
financial statements. The actual bonus is approved by the board of directors and is settled within a period of 12 months.
Severance pay:
Employees who leave the Company after serving the Company for more than five years are entitled for severance payment.
This payment is based on their latest salary and year of services. The company's current obligation related to severance pay is
assessed by an independent actuarial and recognized in the statement of financial position as a liability.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3.11 Provisions, Contingent Assets and Contingent Liabilities
Provisions comprise liabilities of uncertain timing or amount that arise from litigation and other risks. Provisions are
recognized when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation stemming from a past event and when the future cash
outflows can be reliably estimated. Contingent assets and liabilities are possible rights and obligations that arise from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not fully within the control of the Company.

The Company is party to litigations related to a number of matters. The outcome of these matters may have a material effect
on the financial position, results of operations or cash flows of the Company. Management regularly analyses current
information about these matters and provides provisions for probable cash outflows, including the estimate of legal expenses
to resolve the matters. Internal and external lawyers are used for these assessments. In making the decision regarding the
need for provisions, management considers the degree of probability of an unfavorable outcome and the ability to make a
sufficiently reliable estimate of the amount of loss. The filing of a suit or formal assertion of a claim against the Company or
the disclosure of any such suit or assertion, does not automatically indicate that a provision may be appropriate.

2.3.12 Financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.
A financial asset or liability is recognized when the
The Company classifies its financial assets into the
held-to-maturity financial assets, available-for-sale
appropriate classification of its investments at initial

Company becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
financial assets, and loans and receivables. Management determines the
recognition and re-evaluates this at the end of each reporting period.

2.9.13 Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the financial instrument.
Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards are transferred. A financial liability is derecognised when it is
extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expires.
Except for those trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component and are measured at the transaction
price in accordance with IFRS 15, all financial assets are initially measured at fair value adjusted for transaction costs (where
applicable).
Subsequent measurement
Receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market
other than those that the Company intends to sell in the short term or those that it has designated as at fair value through
profit or loss or available-for-sale. Receivables arising from insurance contracts are also classified in this category and are
reviewed for impairment as part of the impairment review of loans and receivables.
Held-to-maturity financial assets : Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities
are classified as held to maturity when the Company has the positive intention and ability to hold until maturity. They include
government securities, time deposits with financial institutions and statutory deposits with National Bank of Ethiopia. These
investments are initially recognized at cost, being the fair value of the consideration paid for the acquisition of the investment.
All transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition are also included in the cost of the investment.
Available-for-sale financial assets: Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as
available-for-sale or are not classified as loans, advances and receivables, or financial assets held to maturity. They include
equity investments in unquoted markets. They are carried at cost, since their fair value cannot be reliably estimated.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.9

Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets : The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset (or Company of financial assets) is impaired. Impairment losses are recognized if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that have occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset, and that those events have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset that can be reliably
estimated. The impairment loss so recognized is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognized (i.e. removed from the Company’s statement of financial position) when:
• The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
• The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without mate delay to a third party under a ‘pass–through’
arrangement; and either
(a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.
When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
Company continues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case,
the Company also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

2.9.14 Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other
financial liabilities.
All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of other financial liabilities, net of directly
attributable transaction costs. The Company's financial liabilities include trade payables, other payables, accrued charges .
Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Financial instruments issued by the Company, that are not designated at fair value through profit or loss but are classified as
financial liabilities at amortized cost, where the substance of the contractual arrangement results in the Company having an
obligation either to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder, or to satisfy the obligation other than by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of own equity shares.
After initial measurement, financial liabilities at amortized cost are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR.
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on the issue and costs that are an integral part of
the EIR.
All financial liabilities of the Company are carried at amortized cost.
Derecognition of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are derecognized when they have been redeemed or otherwise extinguished.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.9

Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)

2.9.15 Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position where The
Company has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or
realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legal enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company
or the counterparty.
2.9.16 Dividend
Dividends payable to the Company’s shareholders are charged to equity and are recognized as a liability in the financial
statements in the year in which the dividends are approved by the shareholders. Proposed dividends, if any, are shown as a
separate component of equity until approved by shareholders.
3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the management of the Company to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions which affect the reported amount of the Company’s assets, liabilities, income,
expenses, and related disclosures. Judgements, assumptions and estimates are based on historical experience, expectations,
current trends and other factors that management believes to be relevant at the time at which the Company’s financial
statements are prepared. Management reviews, on a regular basis, the Company’s accounting policies, assumptions,
estimates and judgements in order to ensure that financial statements are presented fairly and in accordance with IFRS.
Critical accounting estimates include those that have a significant risk of causing material adjustments and are often applied
to matters or outcomes that are inherently uncertain and subject to change. As such, management cautions that future events
often vary from forecasts and expectations and that estimates routinely require adjustments.
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year
are the useful lives of property, plant, and equipment, the recoverability of the carrying value of retentions, the recognition
and valuation of provisions for constructions and environmental liabilities, and the recoverability and measurement of
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Actual results may differ from those estimates and assumptions.
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, assumptions,
and estimates which have significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:
a) Going concern
The Company’s management has made an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and is satisfied
that the Company has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, the management is not
aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Therefore, the financial statements continue to be prepared on the going concern basis.
b) Insurance contract liabilities
i) General business
Management applies judgment in the estimation of short-term insurance contract liabilities. The Company uses historical
experience to estimate the ultimate cost of claims and the provision for incurred but not reported (IBNR) claims. This involves
the analysis of historical claims development factors and the selection of estimated development factors based on this
historical pattern. The selected development factors are then applied to claims data for each accident year that is not fully
developed to produce an estimated ultimate claims cost for each accident year. The Company estimates claims using
projected ultimate loss ratios based on notified claims and by engaging an independent actuarial.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (Continued)
b) Insurance contract liabilities (continued)
ii) Long term business
The determination of the liabilities under long term insurance contracts is dependent on estimates made by the Company.
Assumptions used to compute the liabilities include mortality, persistency and investment returns. The assumptions used also
include margin for adverse deviation, for key variables, when considered appropriate. The Company uses standard mortality
tables that reflect historical mortality experience. The main source of uncertainty is that future mortality may end up being
significantly worse than in the past for the age groups in which the Company has significant exposure to mortality risk.
However, continuing improvements in medical care and social conditions could result in improvements in longevity in excess
of those allowed for in the estimates used to determine the liability for contracts where the Company is exposed to longevity
risk. For contracts without fixed terms, it is assumed that the Company will be able to increase mortality risk charges in future
years in line with emerging mortality experience. Estimates are also made as to future investment income arising from the
assets backing long-term insurance contracts. These estimates are based on current market returns as well as expectations
about future economic and financial developments.
c) Operating lease commitments: the Company as lessor
The Company has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property portfolio. The Company has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting
a substantial portion of the economic life of the commercial property and the present value of the minimum lease payments
not amounting to substantially all of the fair value of the commercial property, that it retains all the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of these properties and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.
d) Operating lease commitments: the Company as lessee
The Company has more than 45 branch and contact offices located in different parts of the country. Many of these offices are
located in rented building occupied based on the leases contract entered into with the property owners. The Company has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the rent contract, that it doesn’t retain all the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of these properties and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.
e) Equity investment
The Company holds 5% of the voting rights in Dashen Bank Share Company and Ethiopian Reinsurance Share Company. Even
though the Company holds less than 20% of the voting rights of these companies, the Company considers that it has
significant influence in the companies and accounts for its equity investment in these companies using the equity method.

4

GROSS AND NET PREMIUM EARNED
2019

2018

Gross Written
premium

Net Unearned
Premium
Reserve

Gross earned
premium

Premium ceded
to Reinsurer

Net Earned
premium

Net Earned
premium

ETB

ETB

ETB

ETB

ETB

ETB

General insurance business
180,216,528

7,393,818

187,610,345

19,872,239

167,738,106

160,654,527

Fire
Bonds &
miscellaneous
accident

51,245,661

4,995,094

56,240,755

42,792,569

13,448,186

12,889,811

54,872,172

(4,128,425)

50,743,748

23,609,983

27,133,765

28,179,699

Engineering

25,652,283

2,707,499

28,359,782

20,008,208

8,351,574

9,476,568

Marine

24,452,086

21,701

24,473,787

14,107,263

10,366,524

12,137,497

Workmen's
compensation

17,506,941

1,430,476

18,937,417

875,376

18,062,041

16,242,655

Others

58,480,542

(2,156,277)

56,324,265

46,022,353

10,301,912

6,833,462

412,426,213

10,263,886

422,690,099

167,287,991

255,402,108

246,414,219

Motor

Long term insurance business
Medical

27,869,500

-

-

Group term
Individual endowment

24,083,549
21,696,802

-

-

5,543,821

-

-

79,193,672

-

-

Others
Total Gross Earned
Premium

491,619,885

10,263,886

501,883,771

27,869,500

19,589,785

4,483,477

19,600,072

13,832,470

1,368,513

20,328,290

20,460,630

-

5,543,821

7,139,035

5,851,990

73,341,683

61,021,920

173,139,980

328,743,791

307,436,139

-
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5

COMMISSION AND FEES INCOME

2,019

2,018

ETB

ETB

Gross commission Income

48,145,853

77,716,500

Add Unearned commission Income at 1 July

34,437,429

15,980,269

(31,412,951)

(34,437,429)

51,170,331

59,259,340

1,595,605

1,883,606

General insurance business

Less Unearned commission Income at 30 June

Long-term insurance business
Commission income

6

1,595,605

1,883,606

52,765,936

61,142,946

Interest income on bank deposit

56,996,098

63,328,883

Dividend income

65,150,721

26,209,721

Rent income from investment properties

11,030,254

9,625,272

INVESTMENT INCOME
General insurance business

Interest income on Government securities
Long-term insurance business
Interest income on bank deposit
Interest income on Government securities
Interest on policy loan

Total investment income
7

3,720,925

1,952,816

136,897,998

101,116,691

21,590,253

17,838,352

189,740

135,000

97,133

70,332

21,877,126

18,043,684

158,775,124

119,160,375

6,329,173

8,512,524

OTHER INCOME
General insurance business
Recovery from salvage handling cost
Gain on disposal of property & equipment
Gain on foreign exchange
Others

8

112,530

547,894

-

1,103,411

248,547

305,770

6,690,250

10,469,598

NET CLAIMS EXPENSES
General insurance business
Gross Incurred claim

218,037,328

199,448,239

Reinsurers’ shares

(86,752,849)

(59,965,806)

131,284,479

139,482,433

Long-term insurance business
Gross Incurred claim

32,050,109

25,152,053

Reinsurers’ shares

(1,378,667)

(1,119,646)

30,671,442
161,955,921

24,032,407
163,514,840

Ϯϰ
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9

2,019

COMMISSION AND FEES EXPENSE
General insurance business
Commissions Paid during the year

2,018

ETB

ETB

12,809,046

16,327,725

6,155,762

4,510,511

Less : Deferred commission at 30 June

(5,078,634)

(6,155,762)

Net Commission incurred

13,886,175

14,682,474

2,879,930

1,946,479

Add : Deferred commission at 1 July

Long-term insurance business
Commissions Paid during the year

10

OPERATING AND ADMINISTRATIVE
EXPENSES

2,879,930

1,946,479

16,766,105

16,628,953

Total
2019

Total
2018

General
insurance
business
ETB

Life insurance
business

Employee benefit (note 10.1)

ETB

ETB

86,112,386

1,257,933

87,370,320

75,804,977

Depreciation (note 23 and 24)

10,950,681

41,794

10,992,475

10,296,128

Amortization (note 25)
Auditors’ fee
Other expenses (note 10.2)

ETB

40,205

-

40,205

40,205

414,000

-

414,000

414,000

38,153,099

1,196,708

39,349,806

39,591,932

135,670,371

2,496,435

138,166,806

126,147,242

42,461,616

977,165

43,438,781

34,603,235

Pension and provident fund contributions

5,614,361

146,488

5,760,850

4,766,680

Key management remuneration

7,604,146

-

7,604,146

8,099,112

28,719,765

134,280

28,854,045

25,575,762

10.1 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT
Salaries

Other employee benefits
Education & training
Total

1,760,499

-

1,760,499

2,760,188

86,160,386

1,257,933

87,418,320

75,804,977

10.2 OTHER EXPENSES
10,204,908

475,361

10,680,269

10,122,883

Advertisement and promotion

2,985,538

41,599

3,027,138

5,380,133

Repair and maintenance

3,720,310

27,685

3,747,995

4,934,691

Bank service charge

3,094,784

74,450

3,169,234

2,941,703

Fuel and lubricants

2,332,391

33,896

2,366,287

2,012,086

Communication

1,855,560

23,765

1,879,324

1,794,998

957,999

25,483

983,482

1,711,627

Stationery and printing

2,701,963

42,183

2,744,146

2,441,007

Per-diem and transportation

1,357,847

1,540

1,359,387

1,036,141

Insurance expense

763,765

-

763,765

642,255

Supplies

809,216

625

809,841

622,033

6,965,045

442,477

7,407,522

5,600,183

Utilities

204,350

7,645

211,996

192,817

Legal and Registration fee

199,421

-

199,421

159,374

38,153,099

1,196,708

39,349,806

39,591,932

Rent

Entertainment

Miscellaneous

Ϯϱ
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11

TAXATION

11(a) Income tax

Current tax at
30% (note 11
(d))
ETB

General Insurance Business
Long term insurance business

(9,362,481)
(4,500,000)
(13,862,481)

Deferred tax
charge (note
11 (e))
ETB

2019

2018

ETB

ETB

(10,321,279)
(4,500,000)
(14,821,279)

(17,875,734)

Profit before taxation

184,319,663

159,569,788

Tax calculated at the tax rate of 30%
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax
Tax effect of income not subject to tax

55,295,899
2,837,740
(44,271,158)

47,870,936
3,270,387
(33,024,899)

13,862,481

18,116,425

At the beginning of the year
Paid during the year

9,406,527
(9,752,520)
(345,993)

8,220,525
(8,220,525)

Current tax charge for the year (11a)
Withholding tax receivable

14,821,279
(7,283,245)

17,875,734
(8,469,207)

7,192,041

9,406,527

(958,798)
(958,798)

(17,875,734)

11(b) Reconciliation of taxation expense to expected tax based on accounting profit

11(c) Taxation payable

At the end of the year
Assessment

-

Tax assessments in respect of business income tax, value added tax and withholding tax have been finalized
by the Ethiopian Revenue and Customs Authority for the period from June 2007 to June 2010. The company
has fully settled the amounts of tax due after the assessment.

11(d) Tax expense computation
Net profit before taxation
Add: Disallowed expenses
Depreciation and amortisation expense (as per financial reporting)
Entertainment
Reimbursable business expense
Medical expense - NISCO Family
Subsistence allowance
Canteen subsidy
Excess representation allowance
Directors Tax Benefit
Less: Allowed expenses
Depreciation for tax purposes
Less: Income taxed at source
Interest income
Dividend income
Gain on disposal of fixed assets
Taxable profit
Income tax expense at 30%

2019
ETB

2018
ETB

184,319,663

159,569,789

10,992,475
983,482
71,931
543,135
185,525
5,686,772
18,463,320

10,336,333
1,711,627
135,882
539,501
175,153

9,004,186

8,741,679

78,586,350
68,871,647
112,530
147,570,528

83,325,382
26,209,721
547,894
110,082,997

46,208,269

60,388,083

13,862,481

18,116,425

707,737
853,837
5,182,901
19,642,970
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11

TAXATION (Continued)

11(e) Deferred tax
Deferred income tax is calculated, in full, on all temporary differences between the tax base and carrying
amount using the corporate income tax rate of 30%

Unappropriated actuarial surplus
Deferred tax on actuarial surplus (30%)
Deferred tax from accelerated allowances

- Long term Business

2019
ETB

2018
ETB

44,055,370

53,296,762

13,216,611

15,989,029

64,497

64,497

13,281,108

16,053,526

62,743,680

62,743,680

76,024,788

78,797,206

- Long term business
- General business

Deferred Tax Liability

Deferred tax liability on unappropriated actuarial surplus arose as a result of non inclusion of this surplus as
distributable profit resulting in a temporary difference between now and its future recognition as taxable
income.
Deferred tax as of 30 June 2019 are related to the following assets and liabilities:
1 July 2017
ETB

12

Changes
ETB

30 June 2018
ETB

Investment properties

26,256,907

41,773

26,298,680

Property and equipment

36,791,961

(282,464)

Total deferred tax assets(liabilities)

63,048,868

(240,691)

36,509,49762,808,177

1 July 2018
ETB

Changes
ETB

30 June 2019
ETB

Investment properties

26,298,680

(54,130)

26,244,550

Property and equipment

36,509,497

1,012,928

37,522,425

Total deferred tax assets (liabilities)

62,808,177

958,798

63,766,976

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share is calculated based on the profit attributable to shareholders divided by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue in each period as follows:

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders
Weighted average number of shares
Earnings per share (ETB)
13

2019
ETB

2018
ETB

169,498,384

141,694,055

378,456

285,747

448

496

CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash and bank balances comprise cash on hand and deposits held with banks which are readily convertible to
a known amount of cash within three months and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. They
are measured at their carrying value. Cash and bank balances are analyzed as follows:

Cash on hand

General
insurance
business

Life insurance
business

ETB

ETB

754,745

-

Total
2019

Total
2018

ETB

ETB

754,745

751,694

Deposit with local banks

545,453,555

228,528,371

773,981,926

962,346,537

Total cash and bank balance

546,208,300

228,528,371

774,736,671

963,098,231

Ϯϳ
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CASH AND BANK BALANCES (continued)
Maturity analysis
Current
Non- current

2019
ETB

2018
ETB

774,736,671
-

963,098,231
-

774,736,671

963,098,231

For the purpose of the cashflow statement, cash and cash equivalent is made up of the following:

Cash in hand
Short-term deposits with local banks

2019
ETB

2018
ETB

754,745
258,545,384

751,694
332,298,109

259,300,129

333,049,803

Under previous framework, interest accrued on fixed deposits with banks were presented separately as other
assets. Under IFRS, accrued interest should be part of the carrying amount of the asset they relate to. This has
been reclassified to the carrying amount under IFRS.
14

INVESTMENT IN SECURITY- AVAILABE FOR SALE
The Company has invested in the ordinary shares of Dashen Bank Share Company, Ethiopian Reinsurance
Share Company and Africa Reinsurance Share Company. While the par value of each share at Dashen bank is
ETB 1,000, the par value of each share in Ethiopian Re has a value of 10,000. The Company held 169,576
shares at par value of ETB 1,000 in Dashen Bank Share Company, 3,000 shares at per value of ETB 1,000 in
Ethiopian Reinsurance Share Company and 4,603 shares at par value of ETB 9,657.68 in Africa Reinsurance
Share Company. These investments are unquoted equity securities measured at cost. The fair value of the
unquoted equity securities carried at cost cannot be reliably estimated as there are no active market for these
financial instruments; they have therefore been disclosed at cost less impairment (if any). The investments are
analyzed as follows:
2018

Dashen Bank Share Company

Percentage of
share holdings

At the beginning of the year
Additions
At the end of the year

4.87%

2019
ETB

ETB

107,715,000

93,686,000

61,861,000

14,029,000

169,576,000

107,715,000

25,000,000

25,500,000

Ethiopian Reinsurance Share Company
At the beginning of the year
Additions
At the end of the year

5,000,000

500,000

4.12%

30,000,000

25,000,000

0.53%

44,454,303
244,030,303

African Reinsurance Share Company
At the beginning of the year
Additions
Total investment in share

-

132,715,000

Ϯϴ
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OTHER RECEIVABLES

2019
ETB

2018
ETB

General insurance business
Deposits and prepayments
Staff advances
Other receivables

4,142,565

5,693,064

30,242,383

22,123,947

218,013,372

19,274,388

252,398,320

47,091,399

1,576,545

1,676,946

212,658

212,708

Long-term insurance business
Policy Loan (note 23)
Deposits and prepayments
Staff advances
Other receivables

16

8,312

-

556,643

121,429

2,354,158
254,752,478

2,011,083
49,102,482

6,155,762

4,510,510

(1,077,129)
5,078,634

1,645,252
6,155,762

DEFERRED ACQUISITION COSTS
General insurance business
At start of the year
Net movement in the year
At end of year

17

GOVERNMENT SECURITIES
At the beginning of the year
Additions
Transferred as statutory deposit
At the end of the year

12,000,000
(12,000,000)
-

1,181,600
5,000,000
(6,181,600)
-

Government securities represent bonds bearing interest at the rate of 7% per annum repayable after 6 years
from date of acquisition. Interest income from this investment is exempt from income tax.

18

STATUTORY DEPOSITS
General insurance business
At the beginning of the year

36,010,900

29,829,300

Additions
At the end of the year

12,000,000
48,010,900

6,181,600
36,010,900

3,239,100
-

3,239,100
-

3,239,100
51,250,000

3,239,100
39,250,000

Long-term insurance business
At the beginning of the year
Additions
At the end of the year
Total

The law that governs insurance business requires insurers to have reserve deposit with the National Bank of
Ethiopia. This statutory deposits relate to Saving Bonds from the Government of the Federal Democratic
Republic of Ethiopia, bearing interest at the rate of 7% per annum. Original bond certificates are held by the
National Bank of Ethiopia (NBE) and serve as the statutory reserve of 15% of the paid up capital. An additional
statutory deposit with an amount of Birr 11.4 Million is required as a result of an increase in paid up capital
by ETB 76,000,000 as decided by the share holders and the approval of National Bank of Ethiopia.
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INSURANCE RECEIVABLES
General insurance business

2019
ETB

2018
ETB

Due from policyholders
Amount due from policyholders
Less Provision for doubtful debts

22,757,332

22,757,332

(22,757,332)
-

(22,757,332)
-

Long Term Insurance Business
Due from policyholders
Amount due from policyholders
Less Provision for doubtful debts

20

1,037,075

1,037,075

(1,037,075)
-

(1,037,075)
-

RECEIVABLE ARISING FROM REINSURANCE ARRANGEMENTS (net)
Amounts due from reinsurers
Less Provision for doubtful debts

12,110,267

11,167,051

(2,185,900)
9,924,367

(2,185,900)
8,981,151

Amount due from policyholders relate to premiums earned but not received as a result of risks underwritten
but whose premium have not been received as at year end. Starting August 2012, the Company has not been
allowed to issue insurance policy on credit basis. The amount due from reinsurers relate to reinsurers’ portion
of claims incurred which had not been recovered from reinsurers as at year end.
21

REINSURERS’ SHARE OF INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES

2019
ETB

2018
ETB

122,219,358

82,512,987

General insurance business
Reinsurers share of outstanding claim

22

IBNR (reinsurers' share)

25,352,207

51,827,393

Reinsurers share of UPR

218,378,328

271,707,765

365,949,893

406,048,145

At the beginning of the year

1,676,946

1,190,046

Additions

(100,402)

244,100

POLICY LOANS

Interest accrued
At the end of the year

281,986

242,800

1,858,530

1,676,946

The collateral for the policy loans is the cash surrender value of the underlying policy. In case of default the
loan is written off against the cash surrender value. The carrying amounts disclosed above reasonably
approximate fair value at the reporting date.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTY
Investment property comprises three commercial buildings that are leased to third parties under operating leases. These
investment properties are situated in Addis Ababa, Bahir Dar and Adama. No contingent rents are charged. There is neither
restriction on the realisability of the investment properties nor are there contractual obligations pegged to the investment
properties.
Cost
Balance at June 30

2019
ETB

2018
ETB

141,397,741

141,397,741

19,828,098

17,266,642

Accumulated depreciation
Balance at July 1
Additions
Balance at June 30
Carrying amount at June 30

2,561,455

2,561,456

22,389,553

19,828,098

119,008,187

121,569,643

The Company uses cost model to measure these investment properties. However, the fair value of the investment
properties has been determined on 1 July 2016 to be ETB 126,547,707 based on valuations performed by an individual
valuator who is presently designated as an MRICS, awarded by the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyor. The fair value
represents the amount at which the assets could be exchanged between a knowledgeable, willing buyer and a
knowledgeable, willing seller in an arm’s length transaction at the date of valuation. The valuation takes into account recent
prices of similar properties with adjustments being made to reflect any changes in economic conditions since the date of the
transactions at those prices. No valuation is conducted to estimate the fair value of the investment properties as of June 30,
2019.
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PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Cost/Revaluation
Balance at 1 July 2017

Computers &
accessories

Total

ETB

Equipment,
furniture
and fixtures
ETB

ETB

ETB

200,124,419

Building and
structures

Construction
in progress

Motor
vehicles

ETB

ETB

130,779,910

15,603,496

41,644,881

7,639,042

4,457,090

Additions

-

3,828,943

12,962,925

1,695,410

1,009,606

19,496,884

Disposal

-

-

(1,867,549)

-

-

(1,867,549)

Remeasurement

-

-

-

(513,067)

(418,700)

(931,767)

Balance at 30 June 2018

130,779,910

19,432,439

52,740,258

8,821,385

5,047,996

216,821,987

Balance at 1 July 2018

130,779,910

19,432,439

52,740,258

5,047,996

216,821,987

51,295,909

946,174

690,396

553,618

53,486,097

(1,243,892)

(24,659)

-

(1,268,551)

Additions

-

Disposal

-

Reclassification

-

Balance at 30 June 2019

130,779,910

70,728,348

8,821,385

-

-

666,784

(666,784)

53,109,324

8,820,338

5,601,614

269,039,533

31,474,591

Accumulated depreciation
Balance at 1 July 2017

7,839,896

-

19,298,771

2,474,372

2,029,852

Additions

973,259

-

4,974,550

908,084

832,254

Disposal

-

-

(1,670,435)

-

-

-

Remeasurement

አለኝታዎ

-

7,688,147
(1,670,435)

(758,981)

(414,833)

(1,173,814)

Balance at 30 June 2018

8,813,155

-

22,602,886

2,455,175

2,447,273

36,318,489

Balance at 1 July 2018

-

8,813,155

-

22,602,886

2,455,175

2,447,273

36,318,489

Additions

973,259

-

5,589,100

1,001,921

885,425

8,449,705

Disposal

-

-

(922,747)

(16,865)

(5,509)

(945,121)

-

(1,195,633)
26,073,606

3,440,231

3,327,189

(1,195,633)
42,627,440

Adjustments
Balance at 30 June 2019
Carrying amount at 30 June
2018

121,966,755

19,432,439

30,137,372

6,366,210

2,600,722

180,503,498

Carrying amount at
2019

120,993,496

70,728,348

27,035,718

5,380,107

2,274,424

226,412,093

30 June

9,786,414

ϯϭ
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PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
Construction in progress
The company has started to construct it's head quarter located in Addis Ababa at a total contract price of ETB 832,133,400.
The construction work is awarded to China WU Yi Co. ltd through an international bid.

25

LEASEHOLD LAND
The Company owns 2,193m2 of leasehold land in Bahir Dar leased from the regional government for a lease term of 60
years. The lease value was fully paid and the leasehold land cost is amortized over the period of the lease. The amortization
is analyzed as follows:

Lease value

2019
ETB

2018
ETB

2,412,300

2,412,300

807,450

767,245.00

40,205

40,205

Amortization
Balance at July 1
Charge for the year
Balance at June 30
Carrying amount at June 30

847,655

807,450

1,564,645

1,604,850

ϯϮ
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26

398,861,874

Total as at 30 June

407,545,518

8,683,644

398,861,874

51,904,943

(147,571,566)

-

(147,571,566)

(25,352,207)

(122,219,359)

(147,571,566)

(60,277,663)

(87,293,903)

47,046,478

259,973,952

8,683,644

251,290,308

26,552,736

224,737,572

251,290,308

131,284,479

120,005,830

(105,703,826)

225,709,656

27,160,487

198,549,168

ETB

Net

365,187,254

5,137,217

360,050,036

78,987,881

281,062,155

360,050,036

234,790,543

125,259,493

(196,197,307)

321,456,800

45,956,619

275,500,181

ETB

Gross

(134,340,381)

-

(134,340,381)

(51,827,393)

(82,512,987)

(134,340,381)

(95,308,109)

(39,032,271)

74,278,598

(113,310,869)

(16,485,090)

(96,825,779)

ETB

2018
Reinsurer

Net

230,846,873

5,137,217

225,709,656

27,160,487

198,549,168

225,709,656

139,482,434

86,227,222

(121,918,709)

208,145,931

29,471,529

178,674,402

ETB

Balance at end of the year

Net increase in the period

Balance at beginning of the year

318,541,540

(63,593,323)

382,134,863

ETB

Gross

(217,435,927)

54,271,838

(271,707,765)

Reinsurer
ETB

2019

101,105,613

(9,321,485)

110,427,098

ETB

Net

382,134,863

228,134,710

154,000,153

ETB

Gross

(271,707,765)

(218,584,105)

(53,123,660)

ETB

2018
Reinsurer

110,427,098

9,550,605

100,876,493

ETB

Net

Unearned premiums represents the liability for general insurance business contracts where the Company’s obligations are not yet expired at the year end. The
movements in the unearned premium are as shown below:

UNEARNED PREMIUM

Insurance contract liabilities (claims)

Current and prior year claim

Long Term Insurance Business

Total at end of year

Incurred but not reported

Notified Claims (notified plus disputed)

346,956,931

191,562,141

Current and prior year claim

Comprising

207,299,733

(152,750,303)

(51,827,393)
(134,340,381)

78,987,881

(82,512,987)

360,050,036

281,062,155

ETB

ETB

Increase /decrease in liabilities:-

Cash paid for claims settled in year

Incurred but not reported as at 30 June

Notified claims as at 30 June

2019
Reinsurer

Gross

The movement in the Company’s general insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance assets are shown below:

INSURANCE CONTRACT LAIBILITIES
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PAYABLES ARISING OUT OF REINSURANCE ARRANGEMENT
These balances arise as a result of premium ceded with respect to reinsurance arrangements and local co-insuring
arrangements.
Long Term
Insurance
Business
ETB

Total
2019
ETB

Total
2018
ETB

84,834,013

86,804,835

30 June 2019
ETB

30 June 2018
ETB

– Severance benefit plan (note 29.1(a))

9,131,000

7,691,000

Liability in the statement of financial position

9,131,000

7,691,000

– Severance benefit plan (note 29.1(a))

9,131,000

1,738,000

Total defined benefit expenses

9,131,000

1,738,000

1,440,000

351,000

1,440,000

351,000

Payables arising from reinsurance
arrangements and insurance
arrangements

29

General
insurance
business
ETB
72,406,595

12,427,418

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION
Defined benefits liabilities:

Income statement charge included in personnel
expenses:

Remeasurements for:
– Severance benefit plan (note 29.1)

29.1

The income statement charge included within personnel expenses includes current service cost, interest cost, past
service costs on the defined benefit schemes.
The severance benefit plan is an unfunded defined benefit scheme.
The key financial assumptions are the discount rate and the rate of salary increases. The provision was based on an
independent actuarial valuation performed by Zamra Financial Services East Africa Limited using the projected unit
credit method.
The Company does not maintain any assets for the schemes but ensures that it has sufficient funds for the
obligations as they materialise.

(i)

Severance benefit plan
The severance benefits are based on the statutory severance benefit as set out in Labour Proclamation No.
377/2003, as amended by the Labour (Amendment) Proclamation No. 494/2006. Employees who have served the
Company for 5 years and above and are below the retirement age (i.e. has not met the requirement to access the
pension fund) are entitled for the benefit. The final pay-out is determined by reference to final monthly salary and
number of years in service computed as one month salary of the first year in employment plus one-third of monthly
salary for subsequent years to a maximum of twelve months salary.

29(a)

Liability recognised in the financial position
Severance pay

29(b)

2019
ETB

2018
ETB

9,131,000

7,691,000

48,000

351,000

-

-

48,000

351,000

Amount recognised in other comprehensive income:
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on demographic assumptions
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on economic assumptions
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on experience

ϯϰ
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29

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION (Continued)

29(c)

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
7,691,000

6,215,000

798,000

1,280,000

Interest cost

594,000

458,000

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on demographic assumptions
Benefits paid
At the end of the year

48,000

351,000

(48,000)

(613,000)

9,083,000

7,691,000

2019
ETB

2018
ETB

13.5%
10%

7%
5%

The principal assumptions used in determining defined benefit obligations

Discount rate (p.a)
Long term salary increases (p.a)
(i)

2018
ETB

Current service cost

At the beginning of the year

29(d)

2019
ETB

Discount rate
In Ethiopia, there is neither a deep market in corporate nor government bonds. Furthermore, the market for
treasury bills in Ethiopia is inefficient and does not appear to be market determined. IAS 19 does not provide
guidance for setting the discount rate in a country with limited government bonds or instruments.
The Company therefore opted to use a discount rate of 14% (30 June 2019: 7%, based on the prevailing long term
saving rate and average lendng rate as discribed by the National Bank of Ethiopia.

(ii)

Long term salary increases
The salary increase has been determined by the management as mutually compatible rate taking into account the
likely future economic scenarios of the country.

30

2019

2018

ETB

ETB

Accrued charges

25,156,458

25,674,460

Advance collections from policy holders

70,821,971

63,218,897

Sundry payables

12,893,880

10,800,935

Other taxation payable

1,232,276

13,866,637

Micro Insurance fund

3,514,455

6,810,547

113,619,040

120,371,476

OTHER PAYABLES
General Insurance Business

Long Term Insurance Business
Accrued charges
Advance collections from policy holders
Sundry payables
Other taxation payable

31

439,074

426,724

8,246,534

9,194,725

39,472

37,212

70

1,191

8,725,149
122,344,189

9,659,853
130,031,329

Balance as at 1 July

14,256,557

11,618,952

Declared during the year

35,730,700

29,982,354

(38,451,592)
11,535,665

(27,344,749)
14,256,557

DIVIDEND PAYABLE

Paid during the year
Balance as at 30 June

ϯϱ
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32

SEGMENT REPORTING
Segment information is presented in respect of Company's business segments which represent the primary segment
reporting and is based on the Company's reporting structure. These information are reported with respect to the
following segments.
i) General Insurance business
General Insurance transactions with corporate and individual policy holders.
ii) Long term (life) insurance business
Life insurance transactions with corporate and individual life insurance policy holders.

32(a)

Statement of financial position 30 June 2019

General Insurance
Business
ETB

Long Term
Insurance
Business
ETB

Total
2019

546,208,300

228,528,371

774,736,671

ETB

Assets
Cash and balances with banks
Investment in securities
-Available for sale
-Loans and receivables
Other receivables

244,030,303
252,398,320

2,354,158

244,030,303
254,752,478

Deferred acquisition costs

5,078,634

-

Receivable arising from reinsurance arrangment (net)

9,924,367

-

9,924,367

365,949,893

-

365,949,893

Reinsurers’ share of insurance contract liabilities
Statutory deposit
Leasehold land
Investment properties
Property and equipment
Total Assets

48,010,900

3,239,100

5,078,634

51,250,000

1,564,645

-

1,564,645

119,008,187

-

119,008,187

226,114,123
1,818,287,672

297,970
234,419,599

226,412,093
2,052,707,271

Liabilities
72,406,595

12,427,418

84,834,013

Insurance contract liabilities (claims)

398,861,874

8,683,644

407,545,518

Unearned premium

318,541,540

Payables arising out of reinsurance arrangements

Actuarial value of policyholder liability
Current Income tax payable

2,692,041

142,518,173
4,500,000

Dividends payable

11,535,665

Deferred tax liabilities

62,743,680

Deffered commission income

31,412,951

-

Retirement benefit obligation

9,131,000

-

Other payables
Intra company account
Total liabilities

113,619,040

13,281,108

8,725,149

39,629,832

(39,629,832)

1,060,574,217

150,505,660

318,541,540
142,518,173
7,192,041
11,535,665
76,024,788
31,412,951
9,131,000
122,344,189
1,211,079,877
-

Equity
Paid up capital
Legal reserves
Retained earnings
Life fund reserve
Revaluation surplus
Total equity
Total Equity and liabilities

377,494,000

38,962,000

416,456,000

86,486,339

4,512,686

90,999,025

145,237,444

9,450,000

154,687,444

30,838,759

30,838,759

148,495,673

150,493

148,646,166

757,713,456
1,818,287,673

83,913,938
234,419,599

841,627,394
2,052,707,271

-

ϯϲ
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32(d)

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income 30 June 2019
General Insurance
Business
ETB

Long Term
Insurance
Business
ETB

Gross premium income

412,426,213

79,193,672

491,619,885

Change in unearned premium net
Gross earned premium
Less:

10,263,886
422,690,099

79,193,672

501,883,771

Premium ceded to reinsurers

167,287,991

5,851,990

(173,139,980)

Net earned premium income
Commission and fees earned
Investment income
Other income

255,402,108
51,170,331
136,897,998
6,690,250
194,758,580

73,341,683
1,595,605
21,877,126
23,472,731

328,743,791
52,765,936
158,775,124
6,690,250
218,231,310

10,263,886

Total income

450,160,688

96,814,413

546,975,101

Net Insurance claims expenses
Commission and fees expense

(131,284,479)
(13,886,175)
-

(30,671,442)
(2,879,930)
-

(161,955,921)
(16,766,105)
-

Other operating and administrative expenses

(135,670,371)

(2,496,435)

(138,166,806)

(280,841,025)
169,319,663

(36,047,807)
132,862,221

(316,888,832)
230,086,269

Total claims, Policyholders benefits and
other expenses
Transfer to life fund

-

(60,766,606)

(60,766,606)

Profit from life insurance as per actuarial valuation

-

15,000,000

15,000,000

169,319,663
(10,321,279)

87,095,614
(4,500,000)

184,319,663
(14,821,279)

158,998,384

82,595,614

169,498,384

1,818,287,672
1,060,574,217
757,713,455

234,419,599
150,505,660
83,913,939

2,052,707,271
1,211,079,877
841,627,394

Revenue
Net premium earned
Net underwriting income
Investment income
Other income

255,402,108
306,572,439
136,897,998
6,690,250

73,341,683
74,937,288
21,877,126
-

328,743,791
381,509,727
158,775,124
6,690,250

Total segment revenue

450,160,688

Profit before taxation from reportable segment
Profit tax expense
Net profit for the year
Total assets
Total liabilities
Net assets

33

ETB

96,814,413

546,975,101

Profit before taxation from reportable segment
Reportable segment assets

169,319,663
1,818,287,672

15,000,000
234,419,599

184,319,663
2,052,707,271

Reportable segment liabilities

1,060,574,217

150,505,660

1,211,079,877

EQUITY
The Company is incorporated as a share company. The shares are of one class and registered as ordinary shares of
the same par value. As per the existing insurance law of the country, the Company is not allowed to issue other
classes of shares.

33a)

PAID UP CAPITAL

Number of
shares

2019

Share
Capital
ETB

2018
Number of
shares

Share
Capital
ETB

General insurance business
Authorized ordinary shares of ETB
1,000
each
Issued and fully paid up share capital
Long-term insurance business

377,494
38,962

377,494,000
38,962,000

310,062
30,394

310,062,000
30,394,000

Issued and fully paid up share capital

416,456

416,456,000

340,456

340,456,000

ϯϳ
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33a)

PAID UP CAPITAL (Continued)
During the 16th extraordinary meeting of shareholders unanimously resolved that the capital of the company be
increased from ETB 340,456,014,to 416,456,000 out of which ETB 377,494,000 will be the capital for the general
Insurance business and ETB 38,962,000 be capital for the Life Insurance Business. A total amount of ETB
76,000,000 was raised from unappropriated profit of ETB 111,730,700 which has been accumulated as general
reserve as at 30 June 2018.

33b)

LEGAL RESERVE
The legal reserve is a statutory reserve to which ten per cent of each year’s net profit is to be transferred until it
reaches the obligatory level of that equals the paid up capital.

33c)

RETAINED EARNINGS
The retained earnings balance represents the amount available for dividend distribution to the shareholders of
theCompany. The amount to be distributed as dividend is determined by the shareholders in the annual general
meeting.

33d)

UNAPPROPRIATED ACTUARIAL SURPLUS - LIFE FUND
The unappropriated actuarial surplus represents the surplus on the life assurance business which is not distributable
as dividends.
2019
2018
ETB
ETB
37,307,733
31,239,160
Balance as at 1 July
6,068,573
(6,468,974)
Adjustment as per actuarial report
As at 30 June
30,838,759
37,307,733

34

ACTUARIAL VALUE OF POLICY HOLDERS LIABILITY
As per the National Bank of Ethiopia guidelines, an actuarial valuation should be conducted every two years from
the last valuation date, hence actuarial valuation was made during the year by Zamara Financial Services East
Africa Limited, Kenya. This report revealed that out of the available life fund balance of ETB 60,766,382, ETB
15,000,000 be transferred to distributable profit to shareholders and the remaining kept as a reserve to
policyholders liabilities.
Summary of valuation of policy
Number of
policy

Amount of sum
insured
ETB

Amount of
premium
ETB

Amount of
liabilities
ETB

Endowment Assurance
Mortgage Redemption Insurance
Individual term insurance
Group term insurance
group Medical Cover
Group Riders
Individual Riders
Contingent Reserve

1746
859
11
48
66
48
189

225,834,677
524,586,748
7,109,617
4,081,211,343
3,450,748,000
1,810,891,554
16,342,553

16,185,783
10,662,796
98,381
18,390,585
27,694,188
6,095,383
66,556

87,821,251
19,388,148
9,059
8,946,728
18,703,289
6,095,383
54,315
1,500,000

Total

2967

10,116,724,492

79,193,672

142,518,173

2019
ETB
184,319,663

2018
ETB
159,569,789

10,992,475
40,205
(65,150,721)
(82,594,148)
203,988
(112,530)

10,296,128
40,205
1,738,000
(26,209,721)
(83,325,382)
(728,474)

Types of insurance

35

NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Reconciliation of profit before tax to cash generated from operations:

Profit before taxation
Adjustments for non cash items:
Depreciation (note 10)
Amortization of intangible assets (note 10)
Retirement benefit
Dividend income (note 6)
Interest income (note 6)
Income tax Expense
Gain from the disposal of property and equipment
Working capital changes;
Change in receivables arising out of reinsurance arrangements
Change in other receivables
Change in deferred acquisition cost
Change in other payables
Change in actuarial value of policyholder liability
Change in insurance contract liabilities
Movement in amounts due to reinsurers
Net cash generated from operations

61		

(943,216)
(205,649,996)
1,077,128
(62,149,463)
55,007,774
42,358,264
(1,970,822)
(124,571,400)

(6,740,859)
(10,807,279)
(1,645,249)
25,291,969
23,678,844
41,444,089
5,274,019
137,876,078ϯϴ
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35 PROVISION AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
In common practice with the insurance industry in general, the Company is subjected to litigation arising in the normal
course of insurance business. The Directors are of the opinion that these litigations will have a material effect on the financial
position or profits of the Company. Different plaintiffs sued the Company with total amount ETB 24,581,964 The cases are
still pending and the Company has recognized fully, which in any case shall not exceed the sum insured or limit of liability, in
accordance to NBE Directives No. SIB/38/2014. These claims in dispute are included in insurance contract liabilities.
36 RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of risks, including insurance risk, financial risk, credit risk, and interest rates
risk. The Company’s overall risk management programme focuses on the identification and management of risks and seeks
to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance, by use of underwriting guidelines and capacity limits,
reinsurance planning, credit policy governing the acceptance of clients, and defined criteria for the approval of intermediaries
and reinsurers. Investment policies are in place, which help manage liquidity, and seek to maximize return within an
acceptable level of interest rate risk.
The disclosures below summarize the way the Company manages key risks:
Insurance risk
The risk under any one insurance contract arises from the possibility that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the
amount of the resulting claim. By the very nature of an insurance contract, this risk is random and therefore unpredictable.
For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of probability is applied to pricing and provisioning, the principal risk
that the Company faces under its insurance contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payments exceed the carrying
amount of the insurance liabilities. This could occur because the frequency or severity of claims and benefits are greater than
estimated. Insurance events are random and the actual number and amount of claims and benefits will vary from year to
year from the level established using statistical techniques.
Insurance risk in the Company arises from:
(a) Fluctuations in the timing, frequency and severity of claims and claims settlements relative to expectations;
(b) Unexpected claims arising from a single source;
(c ) Inaccurate pricing of risks or inappropriate underwriting of risks when underwritten;
(d) Inadequate reinsurance protection or other risk transfer techniques; and
(e) Inadequate reserves
(a), (b) and (c) can be classified as the core insurance risk, (d) relates to reinsurance planning, while (e) is about reserving.
Core insurance risk
This risk is managed through:
. Diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts;
. Careful selection guided by a conservative underwriting philosophy;
. Continuous monitoring of the business performance per class and per client and corrective action taken as deemed
appropriate;
.

A minimum of one review of each policy at renewal to determine whether the risk remains within the acceptable criteria;

. Having a business acceptance criteria which is reviewed from time to time based on the experience and other developments;
and
. Having a mechanism of identifying, quantifying and accumulating exposures to contain them within the set underwriting
limits.
Reinsurance planning
NYALA
INSURANCE
SHARE COMPANY
Reinsurance
purchases
are reviewed annually to verify that the levels of protection being sought reflect developments in
NOTES
TO THEand
FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)
exposure
risk appetite
of the Company.
The bases of these purchase is underpinned by the Company’s experience,
financial modelling by and exposure of the reinsurance broker.
The reinsurance is placed with providers who meet the Company’s counter party security requirements.
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36 RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Claims reserving
The Company’s reserving policy is guided by the prudence concept. Estimates are made of the estimated cost of settling a
claim based on the best available information on registration of a claim, and this is updated as and when additional
information is obtained and annual reviews done to ensure that the reserves are adequate. Management is regularly
provided with claims settlement reports to inform on the reserving performance.
Long term insurance contracts
Life insurance contracts offered by the Company include term assurance, endowment, credit life insurance and Company life
insurance.
Term assurance contracts are conventional regular premium products where lump sum benefits are payable on death or
permanent disability.
The endowments pay a sum assured either on death or maturity of the contract. The endowments contracts have a surrender
value. Death benefits of endowment products are subject to a guaranteed minimum amount. The maturity value usually
depends on the investment performance of the underlying assets. For contracts with discretionary participation features
(DPF), the guaranteed minimum may be increased by the addition of bonuses. These are set at a level that takes account of
expected market fluctuations, such that the cost of the guarantee is generally met by the investment performance of the
assets backing the liability. However, in circumstances when there has been a significant fall in investment markets, the
guaranteed maturity benefits may exceed investment performance and these guarantees become valuable to the
policyholder.
Company credit life insurance is a contract that is provided to financial institutions that provides protection against death or
permanent and total disability of a borrower. The contract pays a sum assured equivalent to the outstanding loan on death or
permanent and total disability of the borrower. Company mortgage is a contract designed for long term borrowing to finance
for assets such as houses, land or cars. The policy pays the outstanding loan in case of death or permanent and total
disability of the borrower. Company life insurance is a contract that provides a life cover to a Company of people and pays a
sum assured on death. The most common Company life cover is the employee Company life which is taken up by the
employer for its employees and it provides life insurance as a multiple of an employee’s annual remuneration.

The main risks that the Company is exposed to are as follows:
·
·
·
·
·

Mortality risk – risk of loss arising due to policyholder death experience being different than expected
Morbidity risk – risk of loss arising due to policyholder health experience being different than expected
Investment return risk – risk of loss arising from actual returns being different than expected
Expense risk – risk of loss arising from expense experience being different than expected
Policyholder decision risk –risk of loss arising due to policyholder experiences (lapses and surrenders) being different

These risks do not vary significantly in relation to the location of the risk insured by the Company, type of risk insured or by
industry.
The Company’s underwriting strategy is designed to ensure that risks are well diversified in terms of type of risk and level of
insured benefits. This is largely achieved through diversification across industry sectors and geography, the use of medical
screening in order to ensure that pricing takes account of current health conditions and family medical history, regular review
of actual claims experience and product pricing, as well as detailed claims’ handling procedures. Underwriting limits are in
place to enforce appropriate risk selection criteria. For example, the Company has the right not to renew individual policies, it
can impose deductibles and it has the right to reject the payment of fraudulent claims. Insurance contracts also entitle the
Company to pursue third parties for payment of some or all costs. The Company further enforces a policy of actively
managing and promptly pursuing claims, in order to reduce its exposure to unpredictable future developments that can
negatively impact the Company.
For contracts for which death or disability is the insured risk, the significant factors that could increase the overall frequency
of claims are epidemics, widespread changes in lifestyle and natural disasters, resulting in earlier or more claims than
expected. Companywide reinsurance limits are in place on any single life.
The insurance risk described above is also affected by the contract holder’s right to pay reduced premiums or no future
premiums, to terminate the contract completely or to exercise guaranteed annuity options. As a result, the amount of
insurance risk is also subject to contract holder behavior.
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36 RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Key assumptions
Material judgment is required in determining the liabilities and in the choice of assumptions. Assumptions in use are based on
past experience, current internal data, external market indices and benchmarks which reflect current observable market
prices and other published information. Assumptions and prudent estimates are determined at the date of valuation and no
credit is taken for possible beneficial effects of voluntary withdrawals. Assumptions are further evaluated on a continuous
basis in order to ensure realistic and reasonable valuations.

The key assumptions to which the estimation of liabilities is particularly sensitive are as follows:
Mortality and morbidity rates
Assumptions are based on standard industry and national tables, according to the type of contract written and the territory in
which the insured person resides. They reflect recent historical experience and are adjusted when appropriate to reflect the
Company’s own experiences. An appropriate, but not excessive, prudent allowance is made for expected future
improvements. Assumptions are differentiated by sex, underwriting class and contract type.
An increase in rates will lead to a larger number of claims (and claims could occur sooner than anticipated), which will
increase the expenditure and reduce profits for the shareholders.
Investment return
The weighted average rate of return is derived based on a model portfolio that is assumed to back liabilities, consistent with
the long–term asset allocation strategy. These estimates are based on current market returns as well as expectations about
future economic and financial developments. An increase in investment return would lead to a reduction in expenditure and
an increase in profits for the shareholders.
Expenses
Operating expenses assumptions reflect the projected costs of maintaining and servicing in–force policies and associated
overhead expenses. The current level of expenses is taken as an appropriate expense base, adjusted for expected expense
inflation if appropriate. An increase in the level of expenses would result in an increase in expenditure thereby reducing
profits for the shareholders.
Lapse and surrender rates
Lapses relate to the termination of policies due to non–payment of premiums. Surrenders relate to the voluntary termination
of policies by policyholders. Policy termination assumptions are determined using statistical measures based on the
Company’s experience and vary by product type, policy duration and sales trends.
An increase in lapse rates early in the life of the policy would tend to reduce profits for shareholders, but later increases are
broadly neutral in effect.
Discount rate
Life insurance liabilities are determined as the sum of the discounted value of the expected benefits and future administration
expenses directly related to the contract, less the discounted value of the expected theoretical premiums that would be
required to meet these future cash outflows. Discount rates are based on current industry risk rates, adjusted for the
Company’s own risk exposure. A decrease in the discount rate will increase the value of the insurance liability and therefore
reduce profits for the shareholders.
Life insurance contracts sensitivity analysis
The actuarial assumptions used as at 30 June 2018 are unlikely to change significantly to result in material variation in
actuarial liabilities.
The Company has not changed the processes used to manage its risks from previous years. The notes below explain how
financial risks are managed.
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36 RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Short term insurance contracts
The Company engages in short term insurance contracts and funds the insurance liabilities with a portfolio of equity, fixed
deposits and debt securities exposed to market risk. The table below indicates the contractual timing of cash flows arising
from assets and liabilities included in the Company’s risk management framework for management of short term insurance
contracts as of 30 June 2019:
General insurance business
Financial assets

Amount

No stated

30.06.2019
ETB

Maturity
ETB

244,030,303

244,030,303

Contractual cash flows
with in 1 year
ETB

1 to 6 yrs
ETB

Equity securities:
Investment securities
Loans and receivables from insurance
and reinsurance contracts
Cash and bank balances
Total

9,924,367
774,736,671
1,028,691,341

244,030,303

-

-

9,924,367

-

774,736,671
784,661,038

-

Short term insurance liabilities:
Insurance contract liabilities and
unearned premium reserve
Payables arising from reinsurance
arrangements
Less assets arising from reinsurance
contracts
Total
Difference in contractual cash flows

726,087,058

-

726,087,058

-

84,834,013

-

84,834,013

-

(365,949,893)

-

(365,949,893)

-

444,971,178
339,689,861

-

444,971,178
583,720,164

244,030,303

-

Short-term insurance liabilities are not directly sensitive to the level of market interest rates, as they are undiscounted and
contractually non-interest bearing. However, due to the time value of money and the impact of interest rates on the level of
bodily injury incurred by the Company’s policyholders (where a reduction of interest rate would normally produce a higher
insurance liability), the Company matches the cash flows of assets and liabilities in this portfolio by estimating their mean
duration.
The mean duration of liabilities is calculated using historical claims data to determine the expected settlement pattern for
claims arising from the insurance contracts in force at year end position date (both incurred claims and future claims arising
from the unexpired risks at year end).
Life insurance business

Carrying
Amount

Contractual Cash Flows

30-Jun-19

With in 1 year

ETB

ETB

Cash and bank balances
Total
Long- term insurance liabilities:
Insurance contracts
-Long term
Payables arising from reinsurance
arrangements

228,528,371

228,528,371

-

228,528,371

228,528,371

-

8,683,644

8,683,644

-

12,427,418

12,427,418

-

Total

21,111,062
207,417,309

21,111,062
207,417,309

-

Financial assets

Difference in contractual cash flows

1 to 6 years
ETB

-

ϰϯ
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36 RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
The table below indicates the contractual timing of cash flows arising from assets and liabilities included in the Company’s
risk management framework for management of long-term insurance contracts as of 30 June 2018:
Life insurance business

Financial assets
Receivables from insurance and reinsurance
Cash and bank balances
Total

Carrying
Amount

With in 1 year

Contractual
cash flows

30.06.2018
ETB
-

ETB
-

1-6 yrs
ETB
-

202,645,901
202,645,901

202,645,901
202,645,901

-

Long- term insurance liabilities:
Insurance contracts
-Long term
Payables arising from reinsurance arrangements
Total
Difference in contractual cash flows

5,137,217

-

5,137,217

10,270,294

-

10,270,294

15,407,511
187,238,390

202,645,901

15,407,511
15,407,511

(a) Credit risk
The Company has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full when
due. Key areas where the Company is exposed to credit risk are:
·

reinsurers’ share of insurance liabilities;

·

amounts due from reinsurers in respect of claims already paid;

·

amounts due from insurance contract holders;

·

amounts due from insurance intermediaries; and

·

amounts due from corporate bond issuers

·

Cash and cash equivalents (including fixed deposits)

The Company manages the levels of credit risk it accepts by placing limits on its exposure to a single counterparty, or
Companies of counterparty and to geographical and industry segments. Such risks are subject to regular review. Limits on
the level of credit risk by category and territory are approved quarterly by the Board of Directors.
Reinsurance is used to manage insurance risk. This does not, however, discharge the Company’s liability as primary insurer.
If a reinsurer fails to pay a claim, the Company remains liable for the payment to the policyholder. The creditworthiness of
reinsurers is considered on annual basis by reviewing their financial strength prior to finalization of any contract.
The table below indicates the carrying amounts of assets bearing credit risk:
2019
ETB

2018
ETB

244,030,303

132,715,000

9,924,367

8,981,151

Financial assets
Equity investments:
Available for sale
Receivables from insurance and reinsurance contracts
Cash and bank balances
Total

774,736,671
963,098,231
1,028,691,341 1,104,794,382
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36 RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(b) Liquidity risk(Continued)
The table below provides a contractual maturity analysis of the Company’s financial liabilities:
General insurance
business
2019

2018

Between

Between

6 months and

More than
1 year

Total

6 months More than 1 year

ETB

ETB

ETB

ETB

Total

ETB

ETB

Insurance
contract
liabilities

398,861,874

398,861,874
0

360,050,036

-

360,050,036

Payables arising
from reinsurance
arrangements
Other payables

72,406,595
113,619,040

72,406,595
113,619,040

76,534,541
120,371,476

-

76,534,541
120,371,476

Long term insurance
business
Actuarial value of
policyholder
liabilities
Insurance contracts
liabilities
Payables arising from
reinsurance
arrangements
Other payables

142,518,173

-

142,518,173

87,510,399

-

87,510,399

8,683,644

-

8,683,644

5,137,217

-

5,137,217

12,427,418

10,270,294

12,427,418
8,725,149

-

8,725,149

9,659,852

757,241,893

-

757,241,893

669,533,815

10,270,294
9,659,852

-

669,533,815

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Company maintains an efficient capital structure of equity shareholders’ funds, consistent with the Company’s risk profile
and the regulatory and market requirements of its business.
The Company’s objectives in managing its capital are:
·

to match the profile of its assets and liabilities, taking account of the risks inherent in the business;

·

to maintain financial strength to support new business growth;

·

to satisfy the requirements of its policyholders, regulators and rating agencies;

·

to retain financial flexibility by maintaining strong liquidity and access to a range of capital markets;

·

to allocate capital efficiently to support growth;

·

to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and

·

to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing insurance contracts commensurately with the level of
risk.

ϰϱ

67		

THE SEAL OF PROTECTION

ኒያላ ኢንሹራንስ አ.ማ

NYALA INSURANCE SHARE COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NYALA INSURANCE SHARE COMPANY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
36

RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
An important aspect of the Company’s overall capital management process is the setting of target riskadjusted rate of return which is aligned to performance objectives and ensures that the Company is focused on
the creation of value for shareholders.
The Company has a number of sources of capital available to it and seeks to optimize its debt to equity
structure in order to ensure that it can consistently maximize returns to shareholders. The Company considers
not only the traditional sources of capital funding but the alternative sources of capital including reinsurance,
as appropriate, when assessing its deployment and usage of capital. The Company manages as capital all items
that are eligible to be treated as capital for regulatory purposes.
The Company is regulated by the National Bank of Ethiopia and is subject to insurance solvency regulations
which specify the minimum amount and type of capital that must be held in addition to the insurance
liabilities. The Company manages capital in accordance with these rules and has embedded in its risk
management framework the necessary tests to ensure continuous and full compliance with such regulations.

37

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
Staff retirement benefits are provided to some permanent employees by way of a provident fund to which the
Company and these employees contribute 15% and 10% of the individual monthly salaries, respectively. Other
employees are included in a statutory pension scheme to which the Company and these employees contribute
11% and 7% of the individual monthly salaries, respectively. For the year ended 30 June 2019 the Company
contributed ETB 3,256,941( ETB 2,500,886 for 2018) which has been charged to the Statement of profit or
loss.

38

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant
inﬂuence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions, or one other party controls both.
The Company has various related parties, most of whom are related by virtue of being shareholders, and partly
due to common directorships. The other related parties include staff of the Company. In the normal course of
business, insurance policies are sold to related parties at terms and conditions similar to those offered to major
clients.

38(a)

Transaction with related parties during the year
The following transactions were carried out with related parties during the year:

2019
ETB

2018
ETB

31,324,597

84,181,569

Claims paid

3,758,952

10,016,170

Interest earned on time deposits

5,500,000

13,000,000

Gross Written premium

Transactions with related parties are in the ordinary course of business and on terms and conditions similar to
those offered to other clients.
38(b)

Outstanding balances with related parties

Fixed deposits – Dashen Bank S.c
38(c)

2018
ETB

2018
ETB

45,000,000

140,000,000

Loans to directors of the company
The company give advance loans for purchase of a house or motorvehicle to all employees and its directors
from Birr 100,000-500,000 on long term loan arrangment
The key management personnel are defined as those persons having authority and responsibility for
planning,directing and controlling the activities of the Company and comprise of the chief executive officer,
and the directors of the major sectors.The compensation to the key management personnel is as follows:

አለኝታዎ

Salaries

7,604,146

Other benefits

6,669,357

6,567,795
6,647,434

14,273,503

13,215,229
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38

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

38(d)

Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ emoluments
Transportation allowance

2019
ETB

2018
ETB

1,050,000

900,000

840,000

414,000

1,890,000

1,314,000

The number of directors during the current year were nine.
39

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
No significant post balance sheet events have come to the attention of the Directors that require disclosure in
the financial statements..

40

PROPOSED DIVIDENDS
Proposed dividends are not accounted for until they have been ratified at the Annual General Meeting. The
dividend proposal to be presented to the Annual General meeting had not been determined at the date of
approval of these financial statements.

41

INCORPORATION
The Company is incorporated and domiciled in Ethiopia under the Commercial code of Ethiopia.

42

CURRENCY
The financial statements are presented in Ethiopian Birr (ETB).
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Appendix E: Actuary’s Solvency Certificate
Nyala Insurance S.C.
Actuarial Valuation as at 30 June 2019
Actuary’s Solvency Certificate
I, James Israel Omanyala Olubayi of Zamra Actuaries, Administrator and Consultants Limited,
Landmark Plaza, 10th Floor, Argwings Kodhek Road, P.O.Box 52439, Nairobi 00200, Kenya,
being a fully qualified Actuary and having conducted an actuarial valuation of the Life Fund as at
30 June 2019 using generally acceptable actuarial Principles do hereby certify as under.
a)

that in my opinion the value placed upon the aggregate liabilities relations to the long-term
insurance business of Nyala Insurance S.C. in respect of policies of valuation adopted by
me has been arrived at using a professionally sound and prudent actuarial basis;

b)

that i am satisfied that the value of assets adopted by me are, on the basis of the auditor’s
certificate appended to the balance sheet, fully of the value sp adopted; and

c)

that the actuarial valuation revealed an actuarial surplus of E Birr 58,615,528.

------------------------------------James I.O. Olubayi
Fellow of the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries
Nairobi, Kenya
October 2019
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CEO
of the

YEAR
Winner of 2019

African Insurance Award
(Johannesburg)

Established in 1972, the African Insurance Organization (AIO) is one of the non-governmental organizations
recognized by many African states and governments. AIO is primarily devoted to develop healthy insurance
and reinsurance industry in the African continent and promotes inter-African co-operation in the insurance
industry.
Every year the organization shortlists best performing insurance companies and chief executive officers
from the respective African countries and recognizes under four categories: innovation of the year,
insurance company of the year, CEO of the year, and insurtech of the year.
On its 46th Conference and Annual General Assembly held from 9th - 12th June 2019 in Johannesburg,
South Africa, AIO declared the best shortlisted insurance companies and CEOs from Sudan, Egypt,
Ethiopia, Kenya, and Cotd’ovre.
To that end, while Nyala Insurance was among the five best nominees for the “best insurance company
of the year” and Yared has been honored as the CEO of the year for his remarkable achievements and
contributions in leadership excellence. He is also the first CEO in the history the Ethiopian insurance
industry to receive such a highly regarded award.
Of course, it was not by windfall but by the proven best performance that the CEO of Nyala Insurance S.C
of Ethiopia won the award.
We, the Board of Directors of Nyala Insurance S.C (NISCO), would like to express our big congratulations
to the Chief Executive Officer, Yared Mola, on getting crowned as “CEO of the Year-2019” by AIO for his
outstanding achievements.
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SHERATON ADDIS HOTEL

Thank You for believing in us!
አለኝታዎ
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THE 3RD YEAR IN ROW “ONE TREE PER CUSTOMER”
Management Team Members and Staff of Nyala Insurance S.C have
planted a number of trees to support the National Green Initiative of the
Country.
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OUR GENERAL BUSINESS PRINCIPLES
I.

RESPONSIBILITY

The aim of Nyala Insurance S.C. (NISCO) is to engage itself in an efficient, responsible, dependable
and reliable service to the public. It will endeavor to demonstrate a high standard of performance
with unquestionable integrity and honesty.
The most important contribution that NISCO can make to the social and material progress of the
country is to avail guaranteed protection and care to the public effectively and professionally.
It recognizes the need to take consecutive interest and participate in the social matters that
may directly or indirectly related to the business it is engaged with, for example in community
education and well being programs, etc.

MAIN AREAS OF RESPONSIBILITY
1.

To Shareholders:

To protect shareholders’ investment and provide an acceptable return

2.

To Employees:

To provide its employees with good and safe working environment; competitive terms and
conditions of service; to promote the development of human talent, to encourage the participation
of employees in the planning and direction of their respective works, recognizing that success
depends on the full contribution of all employees.
To encourage and use available talents and recognize performance achievement and reward
merits.

3.

To Customers:

To give full confidence and assurance that at Nyala risk protection is fully guaranteed, through
development and provisions of financial backings and efficient services, relevant to customers’
needs, whose value will measure to price and service that the customer has paid and received;
to strive to win and maintain the customer’s support and loyalty.

4.

To Society

To carry out its business operation as responsible corporate member of society, observing
applicable law of the country giving due regard to and participation in safely, health, environmental
standard and societal aspirations.
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The above four areas of responsibilities are seen as inseparable and it’s the duty of the
management to continuously assess the priorities and discharge its responsibilities as best it can
on the basis of that assessment.

II.

INTEGRITY

NISCO insists on honesty and integrity in all aspects of its business operations and expects same
from its business associates. All employees are required to avoid conflict of interest between
their private financial activities and their part in the conduct of the company’s business.
The company for both ethical and legal reasons adheres to strict principles of relating to the
legality of payments and to the integrity of all its accurate records. Staff found indulging in an
improper practice relating to financial interest collusion and malpractice of responsibilities will be
liable to severe disciplinary measure.
NISCO shall always act commercially and operate with the exiting national laws in a socially
responsible manner but avoiding participation in any political matters. However it is its legitimate
right and responsibility to speak out publicly on matters that affect the interest of its employees,
customers, and shareholders and on matters of general interest where there are useful contribution
to make.
Where employees in their capacity as citizens wish to engage in activities in the community,
including election public officers, NISCO will give favorable consideration to employee to do so
where it is appropriate and does not adversely affect its operations and stated business principles.

III.

COMPETITION

NISCO supports free enterprise and seeks to compete fairly and ethically and will not prevent
others from competing freely with each other.
Investment decisions will be based essentially on commercial criteria where without profit and
strong financial base it would not be possible to fulfill the responsibilities outlined above.
NISCO does not make payments to political parties, organizations or their representatives.

IV.

COMMUNICATIONS

NISCO subscribes to the need for open communications and shall provide relevant information
about its activities to legitimately interested parties subject to any overriding consideration of
confidentiality and cost.
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ADDIS ABABA SERVICE CENTERS
S.N

Service Center

Telephone

Fax

Mobile

P.O.Box

1

Arada

011-157-9707

011-157-9709

091-145-4190

12753

2

Beklobet

011-465-4585

011-465-4078

091-120-7393

12753

3

Bole

011-662-1675

011-662-4620

091-120-7528

12753

4

Eastern (Gerji)

011-629-8137

011-629-5956

091-145-4187

12753

5

Gola Sefer

011-155-55-00/01

011-555-1326

091-120-7396

12753

6

Kera

011-470 1143/44

011-470 0983

091-120-7390

12753

7

Kality

011-442-4005

011-442-4006

091-145-4188

12753

8

Legehar

011-551-08-48/53

011-551-0853

091-112-3528

12753

9

Merkato

011-277-3616

011-213-22-35

091-124-8355

12753

10

Corporate-West

011-467-1050

011-467-0190

091-120-7532

12753

11

Corporate -East

011 618 0493

011-663-9637

092-272-5630

12753

12

Life & Health

011-663-9065

011-662-6713

091-120-7392

12753

13

Kazanchis

011-515-6496

011-515-6441

091-122-2937

12753

14

Megenagna

011-667- 3581/83

011-667-3532

092-272-5013

12753

15

Lafto

011-371-5402

011-372-8807

092-272-7477

12753

16

Wuha Limat

011- 662- 6710

011-663-9617

091-112-3529

12753

17

Lideta

011-557-3452

011-557-3465

0966-738-936

12753

18

Lebu

011-462-5362/5462

011-462-5262

0960-367-831

12753

19

Ras Desta

011-126-7902

011-126-7901

0900-671-713

12753

20

Micro Insurance Service

011-662-6679

011-662-6706

091-120-7772

12753

REGIONAL SERVICE CENTERS AND SATELLITE OFFICES
S.N

Service Center

Telephone

Fax

Mobile

P.O.Box

1

Hawassa

046-220-4999

046-220-50-00

091-682-2742

919

2

Bahir Dar

058-220-1720

058-220-1719

091-876-2270

907

3

Dire Dawa

025-111-0408

025-111-2147

091-573-0248

1387

4

Dessie

033-111-9111

033-111-2845

091-471-0642

99

5

Gondar

058-126-0040

058-111-7015

091-877-7762

1551

6

Jimma

047-111-0706

047-111-0146

091-780-3470

1000

7

Mekele

034-440-1111

034-440-9143

091-470-1170

928

8

Nazareth

022-111-3399

022-111-1417

091-124-6183

2136

9

Wolayita Sodo

046-551-4407

046-551-3896

093-423-6969

510

10

Jigjiga

025-775-2138

025-278-0435

094-6444535

11

Shashemene

046-211-4696

046-211-4696

12

Shire

034-244-2783

034-244-7997

13

Assosa

057-775-2432

057-775-2432

14

Axum

034-775-2545

034-775-2545

15

Debre Berhan

011-681-3082

011-681-3082

16

Debre Markos

058-771-6951

058-771-6952

17

Dila

046-331-3350

046-331-3350

18

Logia

033-550-0771

033-550-0771

19

Gambella

047-551-1779

047-551-1780

20

Nekemt

057-661-6519

057-661-6519

21

Woldiya

033-331-210

033-331-2103

22

Bale Robie

022-244-3030

033-244-0348

23

Arbaminch

046-881-3809

046-881-3809

092-905-4903

24

Hossaena

046-555-1989

046-555-1989

092-905-4902

25

Mizan Teferi

047-135-0006

047-135-0006

091-324-2512

26

Asebe Teferi

025-551-2022

025-551-2022

0917-835063

410
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OUR RE-INSURERS

A.M. BEST: A+

A.M. BEST: A+

A.M. BEST: A

A.M. BEST: B+

A.M. BEST: B

A.M. BEST: A

A.M. BEST: A+

A.M. BEST: A-

A.M. BEST: B+

A.M. BEST: B+

A.M. BEST: A+

OUR BROKERS AND INTERNATIONAL PARTENERS
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NISCO Paid Birr 10.7 Million to Dangote Industries PLC for failure
of Conveyor Belt and Subsequent Business Interruption

Staff Training on Customer Services

NISCO’s Staff Credit and Saving Association Meeting
አለኝታዎ
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NYALA INSURANCE S.C.

Protection House, Mickey Leland Street
Tel. +251 11 662 6667/ 662 6680
Fax. +251 11 662 6706
P.O.Box 12753, Addis Ababa, Ethiopia
E-mail: nisco@ethionet.et
Website: www.nyalainsurancesc.com

